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EVERYTHING WE DO 1S
DRIVEN BY OUR PURPOSE

Our purpose is
to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders
by making a

difference to our
colleagues, our
customers and
suppliers, and
our communities.




DIPLOMA AT A GLANCE

Diploma PLC is an international group distributing specialised
products and services to a wide range of end segments in our
three Sectors of Controls, Seals and Life Sciences.

We are a weli-diversified and resilient business and our
decentralised model means our businesses are customer-
oriented, accountable and empowered to deliver.

OUR SECTORS (REVENUE)*
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43% 1S

10% Canada

20% UK

17% Europe

10% Australio/cther




Qur businesses design their individual value-added business models to closely meet the
requirements of their customers, offering a blend of high-quality customer service, deep
technical expertise and innovative solutions. Local cultures are created through our decentralised
management structure but we recognise a set of values that exist throughout the Group and
unite us as Diploma.

MBIAIAAD

VALUE-ADD IS AT THE WE HAVE A DECENTRALISED BUSINESS MODEL
HEART OF WHAT WE DO  WITH SHARED AND ALIGNED VALUES

T o

Technical expertise _ & Determined to get better
every day

1icday 21barong

Service-led propositions Striving for high standards

Innovative solutions : : Doing the right thing
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TRACK RECORD OF COMPOUNDING GROWTH
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2019-22 CAGR: 19%
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2007-18 CAGR: 14%
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15-year EPS CAGR:15%
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HIGHLIGHTS

YLAR FNDED 30 SLPTEMZFR 2022

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR OUR STAKEHGLDERS

Organic growth Free cash flow conversion’ Our Colleagues
We have worked hard to retain

great talent by engaging
C)/ O/ colleagues across the Group. Our
Engagement Index is testament
O O to our businesses’ efforts.

Plgnmm]s oo S0

Reportéd revenu-gfowth‘ "~ Netdebt/EBITDA' . Our Customers
Responsive customer service is

one of the key ways that our
O businesses deliver value, we are
/ X proud that they are recognised
O by their customers,
el 0L

Mgl

Adjusted operating margin' ROATCE' Our Suppliers
During the year, our businesses

have engaged their key suppliers
O/ C)/ meaningfully on human rights,
labour laws and the environment
O ® O through our Supplier Code.

Meoget: "7 Mocel: High tecrs

E\djuﬂs;ced EPS growth' ~ Dividend cover' 7 Our Communities
As a decentralised Group,

we want to support the local
O communities and causes that
/ x matter most to our businesses.
O ® We will continue to match our

Ml st g businesses” fundraising in FY23.

Fy 2022 FY 2021 % change

11012 B
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79% BN

Colleagus Engagement irdey

S  STAKEHOLDERS

Since beginning o business

relationship with Hercules OEM

in 2003, we have seen a supplier KEY ELEMENTS OF OUR

relationship grow into a true IEORNGT'ITOERM VALUE

partrership, Over the years the level EATION STORY

of service has continued to excel” Our business model
Our strategy

Neptunc, o Hercules OFM customicr Delivering value respornsibly

Sector reviews
Governance
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Key suppliers ider~tifed

/9%

Incracse in donations 1o ol Aty

SIUSWIAIDIS |DIDUDULY

UoI3OWIoH 18430

05 Diplomeg PLC Anraal Report 2022




WHAT WE DO

DIFFERENTIATED VALUE-
ADDED SOLUTIONS

Qur value-odd distribution model
underpins everything we do and
is the foundation of the Group's
success, We supply products

and services critical to customer
needs. Qur service cormponent
builds lovalty and resilience,
pricing power and margins.

J5 0 Disiorner 217 Arngq Report 2007
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WHAT WE DO

DIPLOM,

SUSTAINABLE ORGANIC
GROWTH STRATEGY

Crganic growth is our number
one priority. All of our businesses
hove fantastic opportunities.
We are focused on business
revenue diversification to drive
organic growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating

in fragmented markets, we also
seek 10 make cormplementary
arquisitions 1o accelerate
organic growth.
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SCALING OUR VAL
ADDED MODEL

Ve
As our businesses grow ¢
scale, they need to evolve their
operating model to continue to
deliver their value-add custormer
proposition. Alongside this, we are
quietly evolving the structures,
capability and culture of our
decentralised Group to support
the businesses on their journey
1o scale.

16 Diglome PLC Annual Report 2022
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WHAT WE DO

DELIVERING VALUE
RESPONSIBLY

Delivering Value Responsibly,
our ESG framework, puts
environmentat and social
impact at the forefront of cur
strategy and culture. We are
focused on the key areas in
which we can make a difference
10 our colleagues, customers
and suppliers, carmmunities,
anlhareholders.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

DRIVEN BY OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES
OUR PURPOSE |

Our businesses deliver value-added services !
and solutions to a wide range of customers and
end segments. Our value-add component creates
customer loyalty and share of wallet; reputation
and market share growth; and pricing power

and margin.

" Responsive customer service

Our purpose

is to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders by

making a difference
to our colleagues,
our customers and
suppliers, and our
communities.

~ “Brilliant leadership, strong
ulture and empowered teams




WE DELIVER
FOR QUR
STAKEHOLDERS

THE GROUP

o]

As a customer-service organisation, our
decentralised approach is central to our success.
The Group has an important role to play in
supporting our businesses.

MITAIBA
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CHAIR’'S STATEMENT

Our businesses have strong cultures, but BRI
share the same inherent values - they are T T s ey
accountable, entrepreneurial and empowered  Boordchanges

to deliver for their customers. e o

Very strong financial performance,

excelient strategic progress T
e el B Dividends
_ - . e
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CEQO’S REVIEW

| am delighted with our 2022 financial
performance and strategic progress. The
management team and all my Diploma
colleagues do a brilliant job - thank you.

Very strong results and excellent A very strong ﬁnancnal perforrnunce
strategic progress - T e
[p— PR

Sustainable organic growth strategy:
revenue diversification driving growth,
buulding scale and i mcreasmg resdlence

1. Positioning behind hngh growth end
segments I

Technelogy -

T = B S

Renewoble energy and mfrostructure
Organic growth investment : . - ST

1 5 - Accelerotmg dmgnoshcs spending

Very strong organic growth driven by
our revenue initiatives, positive demand
and pricing

2, Geographic penetrction of core
developed economies: .7 7o
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CEQ’'S REVIEW
CONTINUED

LJR Electronics

{Controls): R Portfolio discipline

Operational excellence: .
IR i aL e L o

- [ [

. .y

[N T P N . e
Talent, Technology and
Scaling our value-added businesses
R S B < To R I Le RS Lt . and the Group
Accuscience {Life Sciences): - Scaling our value-added businesses
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- - Facility .

Commercii discipliry

o We have maintained high-teens
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Scaling the Group o
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Delivering Vaiue Responsibly: T e e - ~
ermbedding into cur cormmercial Ttinet L ToTt e oo e

str J We have grown EPS by EIRIE I T BN

Johnny Thomson
O/ Chief Executive Officer

sustaining our impressive compounding
track record
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STRATEGY

Building hlgh-qualrl:y, scalable businesses

for sustainable organic growth

1. Revenue diversification
to drive organic growth

2. Targeted ucqulsmons to
| accelerute orgamc growth

3. Scale our businesses to execute
value~added customer proposition

5. Delivering Value Responsibly

Compounding
Financial
Model

Organic
growth

Revenue }
growth

1

perctmg
Ma rgln

Cash

conversion

ROATCE 1

B —




1. Revenue diversification to drive
organic growth

Our sustainable growth strategy is focused on revenue
diversification to drive organic revenue growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating in a broad range of markets, all
of our businesses have fantastic opportunities. Our strategy is
focused on growing, diversifying and scaling in three ways:

O1 02 03

Positioning behind Geographic Product range
high-growth end penetration of core extension to expand
segments developed markets addressable markets
All of our businesses have We are relatively We extend our product
opportunities to tap into underpenetrated in our ranges incrementally

high growth end segments, core developed markets within our businesses

many of which also have of North America, Europe and at portfolio level.

a positive impact on the and Australia where there

environment or society. is significant potential to

increase market share.

STRONG ORGANIC GROWTH TRACK RECORD:

TARGET:
MID-SINGLE DIGIT
ORGANIC GROWTH

MBIAIBAQ
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

2. Targeted acquisitions to accelerate

organic growth

Focused portfolic development is key to the sustainability of our
growth strategy. As we grow, it is important that we focus on the
key, scalable business lines that represent our model and which

we are the right owners to grow and scale.

O

02

03

Acquisitions to
accelerate organic

“Our approach to acquisitions
has become more structured

and strategic. This has
expanded our acquisition

pipeline, enabling us to take
advantage of a busy market
whilst also maintaining our
strong financial discipline.”

Steve Sargeant,
Corporate Development
Director

A disciplined
approach

Historic M&A spend (Em)

2012 2012 2014

4622
P
783
37.8 32.7
2.3 165 - 20 204 4o

Success factors

Target attributes
R R T

How we add value

Strategically & financially disciplined

2018 2019 2620 2621 2022




CASE sTUDY

Windy City Wire:
accelerating organic growth for the
Group

Windy City Wire is a leading value-added distributor of
premium quality low voltage wire and cable.

Acquired in October 2020 for £348m, the business
represented a material strategic step forward, accelerating
organic growth for the Group as a whole. Importantly,
Windy City Wire diversified Controls into the large,
attractive US industrials market and significantly increased
the Group's exposure to high growth end segments.

Simce oiriry the Groop, Windy CLywWine s Troaab s boor dilos Gy senosiie 1o
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTIGN:
ACQUISITIONS ACCELERATING ORGANIC GROWTH

Acquisition of Accuscience in lreland: Acquisition of LR Electronics in the US:
positioning behind high growth end segments penetrating core developed economies and product
and penetrating core developed economies. range expansion to expand addressable markets.

ACCUSCIENCE

LIR>

COTTRIIP AT GiT

'

Characteristics:

Value drivers: s

Portfolio fit:
Portfolio fit: 7 i et e
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CASE STUDY

Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group in
the UK: penetrating core developed
economies and product range extension

In April, we acquired R&G Fluid Fower Group (R&G), a high-
quality aftermarket distribution business for our Seals Sector
inthe UK, for ca. £100m.

R&G is a value-added distributor of a diverse range of industrial,
hydraulic and pneurnatic products (including seals and
gaskets). Its value-added proposition is based on responsive
customer service, technical advice, breadth of stock and
product customisation. Over time, the management tearm has
built a platform with extensive reach across the UK, including
through consolidating a number of regional distributors to
extend geographic and product reach.

Characteristics: Portfolio fit:
L salae added aftermnrket cistributor - Seols in
Fatery HKores b drive rew
Slin b

Value drivers:

1 active pipeline

ol funther
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

3. Scale our businesses to execute
value-added customer proposition

Our service component builds loyalty and resilience, pricing
power and margins. As our businesses grow, they evolve their
operating models to continue to deliver their value-add
proposition at scale — how a £10m revenue business delivers for
its customers is very different to a £100m revenue business.

We have created a framework for our businesses to plot their
Jjourney to scale, including defining the right target operating
model of the future, developing the Core Competencies that
underpin it and the capability that will deliver it.

Evolve target operating model

Scaling our
value-added
businesses Core Competencies Capabilities

Core Competenciésr

R i e Lt

Supply Chain Operational Commercial Route to
Management Excellence Value-Add Discipline Market

. - A I e e~




4, Evolve the Group to support
decentralised delivery

Our value-add distribution model underpins everything we do
and is the foundation of the Group’s success.

Baipiig

adoday 2

O
o
=
o
o
=
-+
o
()
o
<
o
—
3
o
3
0
[ ]

Scaling
the Group
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION: -
SCALING OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES AND THE GROUP

Chicago June 2022: sharing best practice
and building leadership networks

Australian Life Sciences: building a scolable
platform for growth
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CASE STUDY

Talent

“Investing in talent is critical to the
sustainability

Jill Tennant
Group HR Director

of our growth”
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5. Delivering value responsibly

Our DVR programme is built on five,
material focus areas and positioning
ourselves for commmercial growth with
a positive impact on society and the
environment. Embracing DVR is key
to executing our strategy, fulfilling our
purpose and scaling and managing
our business sustainabily.

L IIIY

DIVERSITY, EQUITY
& INCLUSION

COLLEAGUE
ENGAGEMENT

HEALTH & SAFETY DELIVERING
VALUE RESPONSIBLY

Diplomma PLC Arneal Reooo 2022
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O

By aligning our businesses with our five
focus areas and positioning ourselves for
commercial growth with a positive impact
on society and the environment, we can
play a meaningful role in building a more
sustainable world.

MIIAIBA

Delivering for our People Delivering for the Environment  Delivering a Positive impact
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Read about our performance in each of our focus areas 9

on pages 36-47. >
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Our businesses have established DVR cornmittees and Read more about our DVR metrics and targets on 2
appainted persons responsible for performance and page 53. g.
3

progress agoinst targets.

Read about our DVR governance, responsible business
practices, and policies ond procedures on pages 50-57.
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Our colleagues are the foundation of our
business. They deliver value-add to our

customers, execute against our strategy
and are essential to our ongoing success.

Our decertralised Groug cmploys ca. 3,000
colleagues ocross multiple businesses,
geographiss cna commienities. This year, we
welcomed oo, 500 new colleagues through
acguisitions, The scfety, wellbeing and
engagement of thase collzagues is our
primary concern and central te how we
deliver value.

Developing, otiracticrg ond retoiring tolert
inan egquitable and inclucive ervironmert
will support sur jourrey to scals, and s oo
importont differentiaten ir a cnalleraing
labour morket. Protecting our agile and
accoantable culture nswe grove Leden

Dur perfs roet

high-cualty coauisitions.

rrnncs ard bl

89%

of our colleagues are proud to work for
their business

Brilliant leadership

Our gecentralised model mecns that Sur
Serior Leadership learn (SITY piays o ks

ol in progressing the cuture o

of the Greup, 20 well us the perfonmarce

of thair busiresses ond Sectors. Qur SIT
comprised of our Executive team, the
Managing Directors of our businesses and
key Group rofes - has cemonstroted brilliant
leadership during FY22, continuing to lock
after and support our colleogues, serve our
castormners and show great agilty and
resilience cespite geopolitical and econormic
unceriairties.

35  Diplomao PLC Annual Report 2022

In June this year, we brought together

members of the SLT in Chicago to
celebrate their hard work and discuss
our strategy. This was the SLT’s first
time meeting in person since the
pondemic and a key opportunity to
strengthen networks, build our culture
and integrate new senior leaders

Building engaging and fuffilling careers
Yz comtinue Lo evilve sur callure and
sopport colleague engagement across the
Oroup. We aocuire new businesses every
year ard give careful consideration 1o haow
wes anboord collecgues that ioin us through
acguisttion.

Group internal communication is a powerfut
tool for us - cur CEC updates our colleogues
directly through quartely vidzos and
informuation s shared oo businesses and
Secters through our internal newsletter. This
year we introduced a learning managemeant
systern, which ie currertly being rolled out
across the Group.

Ueveloprient of talent supports our
sirateqy, deepens engagernent and is
irnzortant at every iovel o our basicess.
Many of cur colleagues underge on-the job
training, whether through cpprerticeships
or external certification. Through ouw DVR
programme, we have started 1o develop
netwerks thot foclitaie knowleage sharing
across certain functions such as tealth &
Satety, Supply Chain Management, and HR.

Mental health and wellbeing

We are rmirdful of the potential irpoct that
warking ervirorments and practices hove
onour colleagucs. During the year we
contirced to hold weailbeing ard rasilience
wiarksbops with businesses one providec
1esources to mark Warld Mental Haalth Doy,
which was celebrotea across the Grows,

Ve are also acutely aveare oF extormal

factors  Covid-19 political instebility, the

cost-of-living crisis - that may “urther

mpact our colleagues” wellbeing and

martal health, We have worked hars 1o
snare existing solleagues, as wael oy

that loin the Group throwgh

coguisition, Snd are plens d

sflecgues foel that rhsir

according 1S oar E?F"QGC]':‘\"’]'?I'IT STy,

Surther aseistonoes is offered thraoagiv o
sistance Prograrnme, which
ting bsiresses, Acquizitans

wsht orts the programime cuning
arding. Counselling iz alws offeredt
buzinesses where collecaguns have sufferad

o beregvemeant ar tragic event.

yoday nbayniig




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Engaging our Colleagues

Engaged colleagues perform better. Our

e o " CCleagu=s colleagues have great technical expertise
and in-depth knowledge of their products

2022 Highlights and markets. In a challenging labour market,

e e oo €NGAgement helps us to hold onto that

T o Dues are talent, knowledge and expertise.

management system

86%

response rate

/9%

engagement index

KPI

Engegement Index

{an externally benchmarked score
from our annual engagerment survey)

Target
Maintain an engagement index
of 70%+

Ongoing Focus

- Build out our learning management
system

- Continued focus on wellbeing
and mental heclth

- HR network to support best
practice s .

- Continued leadership developrment It's really important to us that

we continue to prioritise and
engage our colleagues across
the Group. Earlier this year we
held our second engagement
survey. The engagement index
was 79% with over 2000
colleagues taking part.”

Jill Tennant,
Group HR Director



75%+

all of gur businesses achieved an
engagement index within o range
of 75-85%

Leadership style

75% 29

2022 i)
2021 73

Q0%

of our colleagues believe that their
work is meaningful, according to our
engagement survey

38%

of our colleagues believe that their
manager empowers them, according
to our engagement survey

Learning and development

70% +42:

2022 70
2021 66

Wellbeing

79% +1%

2022 79
2021 78

CASE STUDY
M Seals UK Employee
Working Group

“[ like that | can act on behalf
of my colleagues to voice their
concerns or issues. | also like
that we develop o plan or
response to each issue right
there in the meeting so it gets
sorted straightaway. It's a
great way to communicate as
all the branches of the business
are there together at the
meeting - whether it's a
finance issue, @ management
issue, or a warehouse issue,”

Sati Sing,

Warehouse Qperative and
member of the Employee
Working Group at M Seals UK
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Ensuring Health & Safety

Keeping our colleagues healthy, safe and

Our vision s that no one is harmed well is a prerequisite to doing business.

We have a duty of care to any person who
2022 Highlights is working remotely, working at, or visiting
CLOmEERsker~=* o Diploma business.

- More robust reporting

- Reduced severity rate

- Improvement in potentiol
hazard reporting

- Improved governance at business
and Sector level

10.6

LTI rate

44,

reduction in severity rate

Action during 2022

I R B AR T L S A

KP{

Lost time incident (LTI} Rate
{number of lost time incidents per
1,000 empioyees)

FY23 Target

5% year-on-year reduction in LT rate I P TR
Ongoing Focus B P R o
- Build positive mental health et e m T e P
and wellbeing B R U Tt B O
- Continuous improverment and focus R

on Health & Safety culture of colleagues feel that Health &
- Ensure process in place 1o reduce Safety is taken seriously in their

risks ic{entiﬁed by potential hazard business, qccording to our Colleague
reporting Engagement Survey
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Promoting Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

We remain committed to better

o e ‘Sfdciﬁriiueogues representation across our Group and
feel abl bring their full sel 1 H 1
Fo e o g thelr ful sehves to businesses, particularly in management

and leadership positions.

?ofl\,li\rv*lg:‘c::.i%hl;isversity, Equity Gender diversity {as at 30 September)
& Inclusion Policy en Femate .
- Unconscious bias workshops — - L .
- Training for Senior Leadership Elunl 4 3
Tearn on inclusive leadership [ 2 -
- Ethnicity reporting 1AT .t 36
Sl . B Q10 - -C-

27%

of the Senior Management Team
are women

KPI
% of wormen on the Senior
Mancgement Team

FY30 Target
Women represent 40%+ of Senior
Management Team

Ongoing Focus
- Succession planning

- Implementing the Diversity, Equity ’ coem T Ethnic diversity (as at 30 September)
and Inclusion Policy across the Group
- Further learning and knowledge Erefer
ShGr'lﬁg ée Ethnic niet T
ity minority sov Tora
0 .
O 13

of external hires into the
Senior Management Team during the
year were women

% of women on SMT

2022 27%
2021 24%



Diversity of our Senior Management Team

Gender diversity Ethnic diversity

Women 27% Ethnic minority  10%

Prefer notte sy "5%

Gender diversity across the Group

Board All employees

Women 43% Women 31%

CASE STUDY
International
Women's Day
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International Women's day was
celebrated by businesses across the Group
on &th March 2022.

Businesses brought their teams together

at funches, discussion groups and through
fundraising events to discuss bias and the
challenges faced by wormen in the workplace.

All colieagues were also given the
opportunity to attend o #BreckTheBias
workshop, which highlighted exarmples of
unconscious bias and the role that we can
all play in tackling it at work.



DELIVERING VALUE RESPOMNSIBLY
CONTINUED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR
THE ENVIRONMENT




We are a Group whose businesses, supply
chain and end users stretch across the globe.
As a distributor, our operational emissions are
relatively modest, and the vast majority of
our emissions will sit in Scope 3.

Calculation of cur Scope 3 ermissions is a
complicoted undertaking in o decentiglised
Group, such as curs. We aro warking to do
this chead of submitting a net zero target
to the Scence-Based Targets Initiative (SBTN
during FY23.

The climate crisis is urgent and g'olbal, we
recogrise the impact of o wider footpring
and the narewing window of opportunity
tomake a posit ntribution intacklirg
this crisis. Beyond the mara’ obligatian ther

ool we gise see the contribution 1o the
lerg - terrm valus creation and growth of our
Biissimacsss

45 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

Cur colleagues are increasingly passionate
about climats change ana expect the Group
i drive progross and support thair initiatives.
There is also the opportunity to geliver

value 1o our custormners by offering rmore
sustainable praducts and solutions, building
our knowledge and expertise, ond working
to be o mare carbon wfficient budness that
CON SupEort thelr net zerc goals.

Our positive irnpact revenue iritictives halp
us 1o posit'on olise for commercicl
growth wilh a positive impact on society
and the ervironmert.

ypioday nbsyniyg




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Our vision is for all of our key suppliers

to be compliant with our Supplier Code.

2022 Highlights

- Active engogement with our
suppliers on the environment

~ Key suppliers identified and the
process has started to align with
our Suppiier Code

59%

of our identified key suppliers are
atigned with our Supplier Code

KP1
% of identified key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code

FY30 Target
80% of key suppliers are aligned with
our Supplier Code

Ongoing Focus

- Continue to ensure alignment of
key suppliers with Supplier Code

- Align our Supply Chain Policy and
processes with our net zero targets

- Build our understanding of supplier
emissions

Management of our supply chain is key

to our broader social and environmental
impact as a Group, and a key part of our
strategy and commercial proposition. Our
focus is to work with our suppliers to tackle
climate change and reduce our own impact
through more sustainable packaging,
logistics and products.

Percentage of identified key suppliers R It I P BT
aligned with our Supplier Code N : R

Key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code 59%




Tackling Emissions and Waste

To be net zerc across our operations
by 2040 and net zero across our value
chain by 2050 at the latest.

2022 Highlights

- Emissions flat, excluding the impact
of new acquisitions during the year,
despite strong organic growth

- Waste measured for the first time

- Business-driven initiatives

Total Scope 1and 2 emissions

10,615

Tonnes COe

Emissions KP!

% reduction of Scope 1and 2
emnissions (tonnes CO,e) against FY22
baseline (10,615 tonnes CO.e)

Waste KPt
% of total woste to londfill

FY30 Emissions Target
50% reduction of Scope
1 & 2 emissions on FY22 baseline

FY30 Waste Target
Less than 15% waste to londfill

Ongoing Focus

- Set 58Ti net zerc target
Build internal knowledge of
Scopes1, 2&3

Divert waste from landfil!
Set out a clear roadmap to
our 2030 1argets

We are committed to net zero emissions
across our value chain by 2050 at the latest.
We have set an interim 50% reduction target
for our own operations by FY30. We are
currently calculating our Scope 3 and will
submit our net zero targets for verification
by the SBTi in FY23.

U A A Socpe e leriive 3,256 T4
e T S S I b 7,359 T _ i
STl e 10,615 “ &.- 470

FY22 Fy2l Fy2i

Tonnes CO.e per £Im revenue

10.5

2022

Purchased electricity kWh

14,033,971

2022 14,033,971
2021 13,947,147
2020 7,762,447

202
2020

Gross emissions

10,615

2022
2021

2020 4,531
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Waste by destination

CASE STUDY

Packaging

Packaging initiatives are being put in place
ocross the Group. For many businesses, the
focus has been on creating a more circular
packaging systerm.

Some businesses have invested in shredding
machines in order to reuse incoming
cardboard packaging as packing material
for outgoing orders. Other businesses have
focused on removing non-recyclable
elements from their packaging by replacing
plastic tape with paper tape - removing
more than a tonne of plastic for their
customers. Another scherme has cormpletely
removed branding from all packaging. By
working closely with our suppliers to have
products defivered in plain, cardboard
boxes, product packaging can be reused by
our businesses and custormers,

All of these initiatives support our ambition
to reduce our waste-to-landfill and averall
waste, It also supports our customers in
achieving their own net zero and waste
reduction initictives.
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CASE STUDY

Facility upgrades

During FY22, our Eurcpean Life Sciences business,
Simonsen & Weel, moved into a new location that
benefits from more efficient heating and cooiing,
solar panels, state-of-the-art insulation and electric
vehicle charging. The business also decided to
improve biodiversity in the surrounding area by

sowing wildflower meadows on its surrounding land.

P S

yioday 21Baypaig




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DELIVERS
IMPACT
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Our businesses deliver positive impact
through products and services that benefit
our society or environment. Growth initiatives
in these areas offer exciting commmercial
opportunities and support our purpose.

Pusitive Tmpact revenue is generated across
all businesses f.om the sale of products,
servizes and sol.itions that barefit our
scriety or environment, and suppart the
transition 1o a morg sustainghle Tuture,
Orowsth initiatives in these arcas offer a key
cpportunity 1o positively impact our
stakeholders,

There ore huge opportunities to ke fo
m the scale of transiorrs atior re
crenie o rmere sostainable,

eoonamy, Seoh s the adless .
el=ctiic vehicle assernbly ar the sl ¢
i renewchile enerdy gereration.

Our busimzsses alss supply products that
support healthy and sofe communities,
such as the highly st-anded silicone cable,
supplied by our Controls Sector, that is used
in defibrilotors and ECO elzctrodes.

4% Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

Our Lite Sciences businesses o el dicgnostic
salutions that make it quicker ard ecsier to
identify life-threatering diseases, incluaing

; tach y that allows for
ecly detoction of i wharns, and
Parme-testing kits for remote cornmunities,

Cror MRO seals business sells Huid scalirg
and tradsmarked
Fcally designed t2 provent fug

2r1issions.

Our decenralised raodel ivas Ls the agility
to copdtaline on oppartanities in thess new

Fost- qrowing end segments os we work
veith our supp and their industries 1o
nnovale nevy, speciclisea products and
solutions,

Chur positive impact revenue strecms are
on important componem of our organic
growth strategy and each Sector has
growth plans in place.

yoday nbaong




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS
" RESPONSIBLY
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Our Group purpose is to consistently deliver
value and reward our stakeholders by making
a positive difference to our colleagues, our
customers and suppliers, and our
communities. We are committed to fulfilling
our purpose in a way that is environmentally,
socially and ethically responsible.

DVR governance

Chur LR gcv;\rnnﬂ = structLre is lean and
ree ed rmaodel, The Group
015 Au; cnsils \|-1~ for pr )wjimg direction
ard support, ard the Board bas ultireate
avarsight aed rosporsitility for DVR aoross

the C.‘FQ.J[J,

Ops=rational exscution tokes place ir olr
H e cfnn 10 cur Custommers,

M anaging Directors are resporsible for DVR

periormarce of their business o-d are given

floxibility to VR focus areasin line

with rooteria ity 1o their business, Targets

Group and Sectar level ond the

e, which includes the Greup
sr CECw, b= responsible for
w-'?rhin their area o

I line with oor 2821 plodge, DVE FPE are now
integrata=d into our regulan Imanagement
reportir g, inclucing biarnual updetes on
car ermissions, Cur businesseas r.’apcm their
=missions data quarterly 1o th

wh-_,rc s revic wgd by tha senior fnance
team and managed for improvernant by
the Sector izadesship team.

ceitive inpast Beverie dote s collecred
each busiress cne aralysed twice o
edr az oot of monagernznt reporting. This
anclysis is cansiderad i usetul 1ol fon
cesessing cimole-reloted neks o
wriunitics, This dotaois
tors, Group Firarcs, DVR stoering
amreittee ard the Board.
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The role of the DVR Stecring Cormimirtes,
which is chairec by the Group CLG, is 10
outling Group strategy ogainst the VR
frarmnevesrk, set initicti -
targets, support the Sectos ard businesses
ond mﬁmMr gnd COmimunicate |,rowr°' :

car be t:? i

obiectives and Jri

Cormmurneotion s key 1o e ed :

of DVR management cormss 1he Group ard
DVR feotures heavily in ragular irtereal and
SLT cormmurmicatinns.

Our Serior Leadersip Team (ST, whick
includes busingas MDs, s Uy Jdr_.te_, udorter\‘y
orn DVR during regalar 51T updates fram the
CEO. They also atterd ni-depth sessions
with members of the DVR Steering
Commitiee to review performance and
DVR goverrand cive updates on DVR
strategy ard paliny changes, and share
their succossas and bast praciice.

The Exscutive team is updated on DVR
along with the 5LT but also hold rmore

sians Bianneclly as part of the
Erecutive Meetings. Sector CEOs rmiser
biannually with the DVR Steering
Corrmittes for o DVR Gavernance missting
to ciscuss DVR strategy, governanae,
climate-reluted rishs and opportunities,
and review progress and initiatives,

Thz Board hiatds an annual DVE session to

raviews DVR strategy, cbjectives and

progrﬁu, Climate-related risk managernent
is imtegratad inte Uroup risk managerment.

aoday siBaiong




GFLIVERING VALLE PESPONSIBLY
COMNIINGED

Our DVR governance structure

Oversight of DVR strategy &
Diploma PLC  performance
Board &
Group CEO Oversight of climate-related
DVR strategy & risks & opportunities
framework 1 T

Sector & Group performance
Group DVR : & PP
against targets
governance
DVR Reporting & Executive Sector & business .
Strategy governance and reporting
. performance team
Committee
|dentification &
management of Group &
Sector climaote-related risks

l T

Development of DVR performance and

DVR networks ) initiatives
Business

< MDs&DWR
Committees

Sharing resources,
tools, best practice
& support

ldentification and
managerment of climate-
related risks




Our metrics and targets
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

GOVERNANCE

Management’s role




STRATEGY

Strategic
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINVED

W1 1

METRICS AND TARGETS




Our policies and procedures
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MEASURING
OUR
PROGRESS

FINANCIAL KPls

We measure our performance against

a number of financial and non-financial
metrics which reflect how we are delivering
against our strategic objectives (as set out

on pages 22-33), our financial model (see page
22) and our ESG framework (see pages 34-57).

Organic revenue growth

Organic revenue growth is the Grous's
nurmber one priority. We focus on
produrts and soistions which are
critical to custermers’ needs, giving
resilience to revenues. We target
rrid-single cigit orgonic growth.

B W 20 N 2
o ’ 2l
&% mE
Five-year average *
+

Reported revenue growth

We air ro deliver sustaingnie doutiie-
digit growth through o corrbination
of organic growth and Righ-aualty,
va-ue-enhancing acguisitions which
accelergte cur o7ganic growtn.

B8 1w 20 21 22

18%

Five-year compound

Adjusted operating margin

Our differentiated vakie-added
soiutions and custome:-focused
approach drive customer loyalty
and create £rCing power, suoporiing
sustainazie ond attractve margins.
We target a margin of 175 -

179%

Five-year average

Adjusted EPS

EPS growth is o measwre of how
successt Ul we have been in growing
argenicaly ona through acguisit'on,
mewding cacita gliocation ond tax
siderat’zng We target dolbe-zigit
Srowth.

.-

oy
2

m

17%

Five-year compound

free cash flow conversion

A strang bolarce sneet gna cash How
funZour g d crovide
nealthy, groving . We target
free casn fizw convergiom of 9070,

?6%

Five-year average

ROATCE
Tmis rmeainrss nov. snctessfy we are ot
generIting 7

mroxe e ta

20.2%

Five-year average
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NON-FINANCIAL KPis 3

OUR COLLEAGUES ;:

o

Engagement index Lost time incident (LTl) rate % women on the Senior Management 2

An externally benchmarked score from our Number of LTls per 1,000 employees Team (SMT) -

annual engogement survey

TARGET TARGET FY30 TARGET

70()/ 5% year-on-year reduction q O()/ o

I I 2

maintain O O -..g,

g
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QUR ENVIRONMENT 3

% key suppliers aligned % of total waste to landfill % reduction of Scope 1 & 2 emissions :_:‘;._

with Supplier Code’ against FY22 baseline w

FY30 TARGET FY3C TARGET FY30 TARGET o

o) 0) 0) :

O <lO70o O

3

of key suppliers aligned with waste to landfill reduction in Scope 182 3

Supplier Code by FY30 emissions F1

+

g

E
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59%_ 60%  10,605.....
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SECTOR REVIEW

CONTROLS
SECTOR
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The Controls Sector Revenue by segment!
businesses supply il
specialised wiring,

cable, connectors,
fasteners, control 10% Spoaly owener
devices and adhesives o ot
for a range of s
technically demanding

applications.

MIIAIBAD

\"«‘up

1ioday 3baypiig

Revenue by geography’
Wlndy C|ty Wire (WCW) 50% Specaclty Fasteners: 10%
- Spacially, premiue guality SO
Guterers 1’.:\J|~_Th\:r WL
. vical supppont, guslity
speciiication and other
) : valug-caded cervic
siarifoart tine -'md coind custamers im Civil Ae
LaVINgE 530 Customers. Motorsport, [Dc "el“(..‘ : © B8% MNurth Ametioe
u\ Industrial. We also 2390 Lik
Wire & Cable (UK): 9% Lstorners with 165 Corinertol Tuione
o s N . i o Lontinertdl Luiope
alst and Aexible coble QT G ,hm = irventary 5 3% Ciber
s and catle replenishrment schutions. ‘ N
Ctiar, TErrInation o
managerent croducts, ana Fluid Cantrols: 6%
cable moenacoment salutions FiLid controliers, comspressars,
across a pread bose of valves, ternperature and
costomers in El.n.)pe [ressurs rmeasurerment d@wf’@‘
an specialised llqul disponsin
Interconnect: 22% cormpenents prmoriy for
Harness carmponents and custsrmers in the UK Food &
Specia cornectors useain Beverage sectorn
techrizally dermanding Reported revenue (£m}
aprliceticns across multiple Adhesives: 3% {compounrd grovth over five years;
industries in Lureps and the Us. Specialty silicones, adhesives

Our businesses tapply O rangs erna sealants together with O
of products and value-add technical suppart and ather + O
services ond prooucts includng value-added services. O
protective sleeving, cut-to

lerath tub’ng, vitting, connector ; 492.8
Jssembly and prototyne

cuantities of custormised
multi-core cakles.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FY 2022 FY 202

£492.8m £343.3m
+24% +16%

£105.8m £724m
21.5% 211%

Change in the year

+44%

Revenue

Organic revenue
growth

Adjusted operating
profit

+46%
+40bps

Adjusted operating

. margin
“Qur International Controls 9

businesses have shown
trermendous energy in
building momentum - it's
been great to see their hard

- Share gains in high growth end markets

and compelling customner proposition
driving an excellent WCW performance:
organic revenue growth 32%, including
double-digit volurne growth

- Product extension: excellent organic
growth in our new Adhesives business line,
with a bolt-on acquisition to add scale
and diversify end markets

wark pay off this past yeqr_” - Internationat Controls organic growth
18%, with accelerating growth in

attroctive end segments while alse
breadening US and European exposure

David Goode
Sector CEQ, Controls

T S

Sector financial performance

R

T S s T s Wire & Cable

Interconnect

“It’s been another great year
for Windy City Wire thanks
to our great proposition,
winning culture and ability
to deliver for the custormer.”

International Controls =7 - - 5

Rich Galganc
CEO, Windy City Wire

Cen e L. LTI LT LT LTl Specialty Fasteners = - -~ =
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The Seals Sector Revenue by segment
businesses supply a

range of seals, gaskets,

cylinders, components ]
and kits used in heavy
mobile machinery and TN LM

a diverse range of fluid

power products with

Aftermarket, OEM

and MRO applications.

MIIAIBA

11o0day 216310018

Revenue by geography!

International Seals: 47% US Industricl OEM: 18%

Our Seals bousinezses in funope Supplies seals, goskets, O-rings

ardd Australica supply seals, and cusztom mollded and

gaskets, pumps and reloted machined parts. The business

occessornes, custorm mmioulded weorks closely with custormers to

and machined perts, bycraulic specity the most appropriate

cvlinder components, ana a seal design, matearial and

diverse range o Auid power rmanufactarer for the

products to Afrermarket, OEM application; provides technical

ard MRO customers. sLpport during product
develcpment; and delivers

North American logistics capabilities 15 supy ,mt

Aftermarket: 23% srall to mediam-sized

Supplies o variety of seols, production runs.

generally ona next day basis,

far a brocd range of mebils US Maintenance, Repair &

rmachinery used in heavy Overhaul {(MRO): 12%

Construction, Mining ard Oar MRO business, VAP

Agriculture, Products are used Technologies {VSP), supplics

in repair cnd mdinterance after high-gaality gaskets and Auia RePOFTEd revenue (Em)

equiprnent has cornpleted its seafing products Lo critical (cormpourd grovsth over five yea

initicl worrenty perioc or been services in kigh cost-of -failure

sold wnthe pre-used market. applications. The business works O
JstemeEres are mairly repair directly with zustormers 1o + O p O

@ 50% NMNorth America
37% UK &Europe
13% Irternational
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S, engme ond transmission HTWP'JFO‘-“.:' SHI,HIF"g p{—'rh)rn 1ANCE,
retuilders and other heavy providing expert’se, product
equiprnent parts distributors. recormnmenrdaticns ard trairing.

VSP sells primarily 1o
transportction, chomical
GIOCESSING, power and manre
customers.
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“The team has been the
standout highlight of my
first year - they've shown
great leadership in driving
growth in a tough supply
chain environment. I'd like
to thank them all for their
commitment.”

Ted Messmer
Sector CEO, North American Seals

2022 was a transformational
year for International Seals:
we've welcomed around 400
new colleagues from R&G
and other businesses and
enter the year ahead better
positioned than ever.”

Alessandro Lala
Sector CEQ, International Seals

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022 FY 2021

£331.4m  £263.7m
+14% +/%

£62.6m  £46.5m +35%
18.9% 17.6% +130bps

- Geographic penetration: Louisville giving broaden the Seais product partfolio into
access to previously untapped Western preumatics, expanding addressable
and Midwestern states, driving markets
accelerated market share gains in North - Building sca.e: acquisition of ACT,
Armerican Aftermarket a supplier of innovative anti-corrosion

- Diversification in growth end segments: products and solutions, adds further scale
international Seals organic growth 1% tc the high quality platform for growth
with broad-based growth against a we have buit in Australia over the last
strong comparator three years

- Product extension: strategic acquisition of
RRG in April to build scale in the UK and

Change in the year

+26%

Revenue

Organic revenue
growth

Adjusted operating
profit

Adjusted operating
margin

Sector finan
Fevrte =

cial performance

North American Seals 7. -~ o0

North American Af‘termdﬂét




_ s C CASE STUDY Q
: o Product range 3
Internationai Seals 2~ -7 -~ eX'tenSion délivering ‘E'

T v B T

organic growth

Hoday a16aiong

New proprietary praducts nelped to drive
organic growth of >20% in US MRO. The
business’s Service Equipment Rebuild Kits
(SERK™) provide custormers with technical
expertise and g kitting solution that saves
time and money, and reduces the total cost
of ownership, Sales of the kits tripled in
FY22, attracting new custormers and driving
market share gains.

Read more
diplomaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/seals/
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SECTOR REVIEW

LIFE SCIENCES
SECTOR
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The Life Sciences Revenue by segment!
Sector businesses

supply a range of
equipment, consumables,

Testing & Diagnostics

instrumentation and 2% S

Gastrairtest nal

related services to the s 2% Ouber st e
Healthcare industry.

Canada: 43% Europe: 36%
Cur maorkat leading Caradian Oar Irish & UK business
s suppty clinical abmbue Ieo;xm - ﬂjg_
ol Jgrfsh Sirstr. rrw‘rltfm( K] 4, g
end praducte, erd specialty pe*‘ljt tlabaeteny daannstcs . Revenue by geography!
i dewvices Tw;-geﬂ'x;-r with and specialty ﬁe[ilr al devices,
d consumables cra Our Scandinavian businesses
s 1o public hospitals, supply devices, equipment
private clirics ana patbalogy and patient mamitorig)
fakzorateres. technologies used in operating
theatres as well as medically
Australasia: 21% sopervised rutnition,
A deadimg supptier of
instromentotion ard
cansumables 1o the pathalogy,
scientific research ard modical
segiments. Operating i
Austrelia ana Now Zesland, the
businssees alsc cupply spacialist
surgical equipment cnd
consumables Lsed in hospital
opearcting roms,

43% Caorada
36% Eurcpe
21%  Aostralio

Reported revenue (fm)
[compound growth over Fve vears)
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“Qur Life Sciences businesses
have done a great job of
developing our product
pipeline, focusing on
innovative products that will
improve patient outcomes
and position us in high
growth areas. Our prospects
are exciting.”

Dan Brown
Sector CEQ, Life Sciences

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY2022

FY 2021 Change in the year

Revenue

£188.6m

£1804m  +5%

Organic revenue
growth

4%

+14%

Adjusted operating
profit

£41.0m

£432m  (5)%

Adjusted operating
margin

21.7%

239% (220)bps

- Organic revenue growth was 2%
excluding last year's Covid-reloted
revenues and was moderated by hospital
staffing shortages; returned to organic
growth in G4 as expected

- Strong diagnostics and endoscopy
performance

- Sector well-positioned for growth: exposed
to rising diegnostics spend and significant
elective surgical backlogs

- Strategic acquisition of Accuscience:
increases exposure to high growth testing,
diagnastics and medical segments;
continues the build out of our European
foctprint

- Disciplined portfolio management:
disposat of al-envirosciences

Sector financial performance

- teéting_ond diognostics -




Strategic progress Dok owT ot o = CASE STUDY P
Innovative products
driving growth :

Hoday 216910135

A key highlight for the year was Life
Sciences’ success with Fuji CADEYE™,

an innovative endoscope utilising Al
technclogy. Our team partnered with Fuji 1o
commercialise this cutting edge product,
which has been a huge success and an
important contributor to our strong
performance in endoscopy in the year.

R LR DR
L Read more
diplemaple.com/about-us/our-sectors/
lifesciences/
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
requires the Directors to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit

of the members as a whole, having regard
to the interests of stakeholders in their
decision-making.

How stakeholder interests have
-~ influenced decision-making

exzmples of
decisons rmage oy the 3oard im the year

Dividend
Cne of the prncpal des
oy the Board over the «

ans consdered

©N0s DEEr N

fa¥a: ‘G«mg \Tf deciio 3
fral dvdeng and 2002 rtr fas dl-’ derd
toe Board considored cur sharonolders
expectaticng, 1ne Comronnv's iguidty
and the 2guirer o miainta-
2 oF e wear, 1akin g
the finacial resources

jolel Al

DL
nto ace
required toexecute Sur strateqy.

Acquusltlons

oorote Jewe:
LUa notentian <
ong-term rpact

€

ol investrients 1 businesses That

tia Dipiorne characienstics,

T INOGET 2
palantes te fin



OUR COLLEAGUES

How the Board engages

‘ -

Lot Pt Ly

f e s Ty e
RIS

Outcomes/action taken

OUR BUSINESSES

W7hy we engage -

Ce e W e 4

T

How we engage
R I O SN L :
- Wy o

How the Board engages
. ,,‘,t,;..,,,, PR '-:“V"‘.‘:"

OUR CUSTOMERS

\?Vhy we e;gc;ge

How the Boar

d-;ngaggs -
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT
CONTINUED

OUR SUPPLY CHAIN OUR INVESTORS ENVIRONMENT
AND COMMUNITIES

Why we enngé

Why we engage

How we éngdge -

How we engage

How the Board engages

4o
i

How the Board engogg '

Outcomes/action taken




CASE STUDY

Relocation of Abacus dx and
Big Green Surgical

This year, two of our Australian Life Sciences
businesses successfully integrated their operations
at a shared facility. The objective was to create
better operational efficiency and improve service
to customers and suppliers. Careful consideration
was given to colieague welibeing, engagernent
and career progression, including through irternal
communication, colieague consuftation, and
openly addressing any concerns raised. The

move has improved employee engagement

and development, as well as Health & Safety.
The new facility also benefits from LED lighting,
better insulation and more efficient heating and
cooling systems.

A number of our businesses have been
recognised by their customers, suppliers
and colleagues this year.

Feefo Trusted Service Award A1 ' |
at Shoal Group OWO r

Techsil won the Al

Distributor Awards for the fourth
year running from a major
supplier

Silver EcoVadis award at VSP
Technologies %

customer satisfaction at M Seals

M Seals UK shortlisted in Filcon Electronics awarded best
Developing Future Talent 2021 European Distributor by a
Category for Make UK major supplier

75 Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022
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Q&A WITH OUR NEW CFO

What are your priorities for
the year ahead?

“QOur strong
performance and Q

strategic progress
in such challenging A

circumstances are )
testament to our e S - ]
outstanding R
Couedgues." TIest torooiid o Tetmatrgn

Chris Davies = -

CFO



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Attractive, high teens margins Effective tax rate broadly unchanged o
(See table 2) T SR At RO PR o Te SR b Bt

MDIAIIA

Higher financing costs

i Cater oo

oday s1Barpiyg

Double-digit organic growth Profit before tax

26% growth in adjusted EPS
and total dividend

0O
o
=
o
o
-
0
-
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@
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<
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-
=
o
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(2]
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Table 1: financial highlights

Adusted resulte

T Y -

gl change
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

Free cash flow conversion
= b ‘-

Acquisitions to accelerate our growth
: : Xy Y

<,

ROATCE: strong returns

5 Sl RTINS

Strong

balance sheet

RER TS N

Liabilities to shareholders
of acquired businesses

o




Organic revenue growth

152

Reported revenue growth

29%

7 3 . ',J: .: I : e : Adjusted operating margin
Sectaplesy ST R e LT 18.9%

ension obligations FX tailwind and interest headwind

Employee p

= A, e
. [ T ;

S largely offsetti
. ; g_ﬂx‘ - ng‘ ‘ et el e free cash flow conversion

Q0%

Net debt/EBITDA

ol 1.4x

St e e
AR

O
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND
RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is integral to
our strategic ambitions and provides a solid
foundation for our businesses to scale.

Our risk management
framework

DIPLOMA PLC

Top down

The Group manages
horizon scanning for
emerging risks, review
of principal risks,
internal controls,
processes and risk

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

maonagement
AUDIT COMMITTEE frameworks
EXECUTIVE
TEAM
Bottom up

Qut businesses
continually identify
LOCAL MANAGEMENT TEAMS risks and opportunities
to feed into sector and
Group risk reviews

OUR BUSINESSES



Risk appetite . Coo LT Emerging risk  Description o
TCDoATT T L Tt L L ‘ L : T d Technology T e 4t e e =
S o R R evolution SR " : '5'

&

3

Climate change

Digitatisation

Identifying and monitoring
material risks
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INTERNAL CONTRGL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s decentralised operations, which
have different Sectors and geographical
spread, helps mitigate the potential impact

of these principal risks.

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Downturn/instability
in major markets

Risk category
Macrodexterral risk
Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

S

Thic nisk remaine at a sireilar teve: 1o last
vear and s addressed continuous'y -7 our
risk monogement process.

Adverse chenzes 1 INe Mmaiar markets
thot e businecses ooerate ™ can resuit
' sioveng revenue growth due to reduced
or devayed darmand ‘or products ond
services, of Margin pressures due 1o

mcreased Comoetition.

The businesses dentify key market drivers

and menitor trends and forecasts, as well

Qs maintaining ciose reiatianships with key
customers who Moy give an early waming
ot slowing demand.

A nurnber of charccterstics of the Group's
businesses modergte the impact of
economic and business cycies:

- The Group's businesses operate in three
different Sectors with different
cnaracre-istics and across 0 number of
zecg-gphic markets.

- Tne businesses offer specialsed products
and services, whiz~ a-e often specfic to
therr applicaticn, imcreasing customers'
switcning Costs

- Aige prooortion of the Groug’s revenue
comprises consumahie orodocts, whicn
are purchosed as part of 10e custerner's
coerating Hadget, rather than throlgh
copital budgets.

- v mony cases The Droducts are used in

‘ecair, g mtenonce gnd refurcisthment
spplicstions, ratne than oniginal
[Se[Slielas"=luLite glainTV




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Supply chain

Risk category
Strategic risk

Board risk appetite
Caut'ous

Change in risk

S

Supply chain disruption hos reduced
snce fast year but opergtional
interruptions at customers and suppliers
contnue,

The ability to service our customers ina
tirnely mannet is a key part of o
added proposition.

Fror ranufacturerbranded products,

there is the risk thot existing d'st-bution
agreerments and vertical integrotion of
supplers is cancelied, therefore iosing access
to xey distribution channels.

There 's clso tre risk of:

- Asupplier taking away exclusivity.

- Manutocturing lead times increasing as
a resuit of supply chain shortages. We
hove experienced this, particuiarly with
supplers based in Asia, in ihe current
year.

- Supgly chain partners not ope-ating te
the sarme ethical stondards as Dipiomeo,

Mitigation

Maragement continues to pursue
diversificatior si-ctegies and regularly
seeks altainative scurcing.

Long-terv, mult’-year exclusive controcts
Pove been s gried with suppliers vith
change of contal clauses, where
appicabie, for protection or compensation
n the event of goguistion.

We ma'ntain strong refaticnships with
suppliers and <eep custermers updated in
tre event of chonge to retain key business.

Meeting witn key Cc.stomers reguariy

1o gan insight 1~te thei product
reguirerments and market deveicprents.
We work with 2or supply chain partners

to he'p trer meet cur standards of
acceptome working conditions, financial
stanility, etnics and technical competence.
¥ they ore Lrnaoie 1o meet these standards
then we vl source product elsewhere.

Inflationary
environment

Risk category
Macro/external risk

Board risk oppetite

Cautizus

Change in risk

®

Significant of unexpected cost increcses b
supcliers due tc tne poss through of higher
commodity prices or other price increases,
higher trade tanffe andror fereigr currency
fluctuations, could adversely impact profits
it businesses are unable to pass on such cost
increases to customers.

IMoroves Drcing processes anvd the
value- added activities undertaken by the
nus messes rmean e are better able To
DOSE TOST INCIedses 0 Customers

A numiber or charactenistics of the Group's
. moderate the 'mpact of

mess oycles

imesses opercte n three
th different
chamocieristics and Across o narmber

of geographes 7

- Thebus -

AT LTS Tel W

their asncoto

switchrng cor

I (ol 2 e
app oot

oL e
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Unsuccessful
acquisition

Risk category
Strotegic risk

Board risk appetite
Tolerant

Change in risk

S

The acquisition pipeline remains
healthy and Diplorna retains its
Fsciplined approach to bringing
nigh-guality, value-enhancing
buginesses into Diploma.

Diploma has a strang history of disciplined
acquisitions. The business model of the
Group is based on successtul acguisitions in
large and developed markets and sectors.

The faliowing are the key risks of an

acquisition process:

- The Group may cverpay for a target.

- The acquired business may experience
limited growth post acquisition.

- Loss of key custorners or suppliers post
integration.

- Potential cultural rmisfit as smaller
businesses ave foced with the new
requirernents of a I'sted Company.

The above may be the result of inadequate
due diligence, poor integration or unrealistic
ossumptions used N the investment case.

A clearly defined acquisition strategy
is in place witn a discipined approach,
including financial retur hurdles. to
bringing high-quality, vaiue-enhancing
businesses into the Group.

An experienced Corporate Development
team is responsible for seeking ond
evaluating new acquisition opporiunities
with the Corparate Development Director
reporting to the CEC.

Aformal due diligence process s foliowed
for every acquisition, with close supervision
by the CEC and relevant Group senior
rnanagement. A formal governance
pracess i n piace up 1o Boord level.

£ disciplined post-acquisition integration
process covers operational, firancial,
governance, legal and reporting matters.
The Board reviews performance of recent
acguisitions arnualy

Geopolitical disruptions

Risk category
Macro/external risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in Risk

®

This ~'sk remains eevated in certain
geographies, inCluding cue to 0ngsoing
events such as the corfict in Ukraine.

Dipiormo operotes in established economies
with stable politica’ and lega' systerrs.

Geopoiitica’ events that could disrupt the
Group's operations are mainly related to:
- Interruption of trade agreements.
- Tariffs.
- Cheonge of t-ade relgtionships armongst
countries in which we operate
(e.q. Brexit).
overnrment budgert spending.
clit'cal erections

I
o

|
13

We continue to diversify our suppry base
and invest in product range deve opment
to mitigate exposure to any snge market

oF o,

Whenever possitle, we copitalise on Group
synerges and ieverage Fiter company

trading



Principal risk

Risk description and assessinent

)

©O

Mitigation

Health & Safety

Risk category

Operational risk

Board risk oppetite

Averse

Change in risk

©

Felative 1o FY21 these has been o

signiticant decregse in Healtn & Sofety
risk as g result of the concwusion of the
Covid-Y9 pandernic and improvernents

iN DrOCEsSEs ar sirg from the pandemic.

Soone Diploma businesses ore exposed 1o
Heoltk & Safety risks, inciuding via the
eny ronment in which tneir ernployees,
cantractors, customers, and suppliers
operate, or through the products they sell.

The Covid-19 pandernic laced ¢ greater
focus on Heclth & Safety and preventve
measures 1o linit 1me spreaa of Cond-17,
irnplernent’~g and continuousty evolvng
these medasures nas impraved Heaith &
Safety across the Group,

Additicnclly, management continues to
promote ments! fea't and wellteing,
offering suppaort To coleaques and access
tc an empioyee gssistance programeme.

Technology & cyber

Risk category
Orpergtional nisk

Board risk appetite

Cautinus

Chenge in risk

The risk of cyne- attacks -ercined rign
ir 2022

ad 3 migh

=)
v owist

The pusinesses mainta n
standard of cyber e
crcomrmnasting rerniie work NG
oractices nter i
ek dovens were

o tre Covig-19 - demes

WE T8 3 IeLnT neE

Growo ond opercting businese managerent
depend citically on timely and reliable
information from their 7 systes o run
thelr busiresses and serve their customers’
needs.

Ly disruption o denial of service may
delav o7 rrpact decision- miaking if ~eliob e
dota s unavoilable.

Foo imtarmation handling o interruption
~f pusines: rray Jist ead to reduced service
1o cestorers, Unimtended actions of
a0y ees caused by o cyber-attack may
aisc iead to disruption, including fraud.

The decentialised nature of the Group,

ncluding stond-glone T systerns far ean
business, immits the notention mpact 1o Gy
indivigual business. There is good suppart

and back-un buillt inte wcal T systems.

Al businesses in the Group have a robis

cybersecurty programime and we regularly

enjage with cypersecurity experts 1o
continuousy improve and strengthen our
T oystem:s.

A formaiised ERP approval and
imiplementation process ensures
businesses nave tre most suitable
T systems to effective.y manage
their susiness.

Business continuity pian: exist *or sace
Dusiness with cngoing testing.

o]

MBIALIA
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
CONTINUED

e

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Talent & diversity

Risk category
Cperational risk

Board risk gppetite

Cautious

Change in risk

@®

This risk has increcsed in the vear, main'y
due to current market labouwr conditions
with the tightening of lobour markets
affecting candidate ovailability and
retention, upward pressure on wage
tevels in certain geogrophies and
changing expactations of working
environments,

The success of the Group is built om strong,
self-standing manogement teams in the
operating businesses, com mitted to the
success of their respective businesses.

As a result, the loss of key perscnnel can
have an impact on performance for

a limited time period.

Not having the right talent or diversity

at al levels of the organisaticn 1o deliver
our strategy, resulting in reduced financial
perforrmance

Controctua: terms such as notice periads
and non-compete clauses can mitigote
the risk in the short term.

The Group places very high importance

on planning developrment, motivation

ond reward:

- Ensuring a challenging veorking
enwvironment where managers fesi they
have control over, and responsibility for,
their businesses.

- implementing a structured talent review
process for the development, retention
and succession of key perscnnel.

- Offering balanced and competitive
compensation packages with o
combination of sarary, annual bonus and
long-term cash or share incentive glans.

- Giving the freedom, encouragement,
financial resources and strategic suppors
for managers 1o pursue ambitious
growt™ prans.

Product liability

Risk category
Operational risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

S,

This risk remaing ot ¢ simiar jeve 1o
last year.

W
Q
i
‘
i
'

There s g risk TI0T progucts supplied by o
Group business ray fait in service, which

could iead to a cdaim under product iabiiity.

The Groun may be exposed 1¢ legal costs
and potential darmages if the claim
succeeds ond the suppher foils to meet its
Labiit'es for whatever reason.

in s tuations where o Broup business is
sellng swr-branded products and connct

2 oility 1o a supplier, the
"o Fabie for “aiture of the

= naz gty inswrance npace

 appreonate cover for eacn

Technically qualified personnel and contro:
systems are in place 1o ensure products
meet quality requirerments. The Group's
businesses are required to undertake
product risk cssezsments

and comprehensive supplier guality
GSSLIAnCE assessTients.

Tre businesses, .1 their terms and
conditions of sale with customers,

will typically wirror the terms ang
condtions of purchase from tne supphers
o limmit any babilites.



Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Foreign currency

Risk category
Financier risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

S

This risk has remained ot a similar level
to last year.

The Group s exposed 1o two types of
financial nsk caused by currency wolatility:
trarslational exoosure, on Transiating the
results of cverseas subsidiaries into UK
sterling; and *ransoctional exposure, due to
operating busnesses evenues of product
cosis being denominated in a currency
ther than their loca, currency.

Tronslational foreign exchange risk arises
primarity with respect 1o the US dollar, the
Canadian dolizr, the Australia= dollor and
the Buro,

A strengthening of UK sterling by 10%
agai~st al the currencies in whicr the Group
does business, would reduce adiustea
operoting orofit by approximately £17.0m
(9%), due to currency translation. Simifarly,
a strengthening of UK sterling by 10%
ageinst ait the non-UK steriing copital
empioyed would reduce sharechoders' funds
by £31.6m (5%

Transaetional foreign exchange risk arises
principal'y with respect to US doliars and
Eurcs. The majarity of the GroLp's Canadion
and Austrahian businesses’ purchases are
denominated 'n US dollars and Eurcs. The
CGroup's 1S businesses do not nave any
materic! foreign currency transactional rigk,

Mitigation

Tre Group operates across a numbes of
diverse geagraphies but does not hedge
trans aticnal exposure of operating profit
cnd et assets.

The Group's businesses rmay hedge unto
80% of forecast (for a moximurm of 18
maonths) foreign currency transactionat
exposures using forwad foreign exchange
comtracts.

Rolling monthly forecasts of currency
exposures are reviewed on g reguilar basis.

Detaits of average exchange rates used in
tme translation of overseas earnings and of
yeat end exchange rates used in the
tronsiotion of overseas balance sheets, for
e principal currericies used by the Group,
are shown in nete 26 10 the consolidated
financiol staternents,

Q
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED
@ ROE A @ TenoTnTian
Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation
Non__com p"c nce Thg Group's bus'\nesse’s are affected by Ther bogr.d of each businvessris accountable
N varieus statutes, regulations ond standards for identitying and monitoring what laws
with laws in the countries and markets in which they are relevant 1o their business, including any
operate, Dinlorma PLC itself is a Fsted entity ernerging or changing egislotion, ard for
Risk category subject to regulation and governarnce ensuring cormnmercial legol risks ore
Operational risk requirements. appropriately managed.
Board risk appetite The Head of Legal advises on legislative
Averse and regulatory changes relevant to the

Change in risk

@®

Laws governing businesses continue

10 Ncregse in volume, scope and
compiexity. As the Group scales,
ousingsses are increasingly subject 1o the
reguiations of multiple jurisdictions thaot
may not all align with one another.

Our businesses are facing a large nurmber
of regulatory changes over the coming
years in respect of environmental
commitments and controls,

Group os a listed comoany and has
oversight of all matericl transactions
ncluding acguistions.



VIABILITY STATEMENT -
DIPLOMA PLC

In accordance with the UK Corporate T SR NS
Governance Code, the Directors have U T norye oo
assessed the viability of the Group over

a three-year period to 30 September 2025,
which is a longer period than the outlook
required in adopting the going concern
basis of accounting.

[
MIIAIBAQ
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CHAIR'S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
itz e Boored’ s Lot for the fironcia vear anded 5
: vesropliant withall o the principles
C B ithe Code), with the pricr of prosisiz
o ton | voortribiotio o th those ovoiiat
ety arrar
the Borrorm
Fau i T spserimtash o ! Vel QR T ainn

Tt th rocsdr L oty

Principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018

Board leadership and company purpose
[Diplorma i by an e ective and
comirittod Board, wated Lo proroating

w2 lon tormn suetainals suocess of the
Zompany, gererating walus for shareholdars
ard stakeholdae, ond cortributing to

Wil sodiety,

Division of responsibilities Fad more on
The rowes of the Choir ard the Group CEO

e separate and there i an appropriate

balance of B e and Independent

Mon Executive Diectors.

Composition, succession and evaluation Feoad nhare ard porges
Appoittrments arg ssbject to o formal, 10810 113,
rous and transparent pros ure.
Saccession plans e in place Tor the Board
Ird SCNIOT TaragsT 1oAn svaluation ot
the Board and ifs committeos is undertaker
armeally, im e with the Cn

Audit, risk and internal control

Farrval trarsparert golicics ard procedures

0 onGure tho independenos ara
of the imtersal ard exterral
cardtheirtegnty of
ancial and rarrstive stoterronts, and to

rearage and eatigate risks,

Remuneration

Uiplorma ks rorneneration

to o attroct thae ses

tarm swstaing

Serinterests. Fredotive
e o aligred 4o the O
Fauilf
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Dear Shareholder,

On bebaif of the Soard, | arm delightag

to present the Compony's Corporate
Governgnce Report tor the year ended

AN Septemnber 2027, which iz my Hrst repa t
as your Char. One of the responsibiiities of
mry role s Chair 's to promcte and oversee
the hignest standords of corporate
govermance within the Boord o-d across
the Group. The Board plays G eritical role
in ensutng that every part of our Group
conducts its bus’ness in a manner which
is consistent with ethical standards
appropriate to a responsible corporate
citizen, A sound corporate governance
tramevserk with the rignt systerms and
controls is key to ensuring sustainatle
long-terr success: we are also very
conscious that effective governonce s not
purely a inatier of regulatory comipliance
but encompasses many issues including
operctng with integrity and honesty,
promaoting diversity and enabling better
decision-making through inclusion to
ensure we balance the needs of ¢l
stokenolders and operate i~ a foir gnd
transporent manner.

Tnis year will be the 30th anniversary of

e publication of the Codbury Committes’s
TEDOrT On COrporcte governance, the
founding document for today's UK
Corporate Govaerncnce Code (the Code).
The report Fighlighted the importance of an
effective board in creating and maintaining
good carporate governaace ond set out the
fundamentals of good governanze which
remnain in the current Code, As the
environment in which corporate citizens
aperate mas evolved and our Grous nas
continued To graw in scoie and campesty,
we hgve continued to develop and morove
what constitutes good governcnee veth o
narticular focus on stakehaiders,
sustoimatiity, and long-terr volue cregtion,

“The high standards of
corporate governance
underpin everything
we deliver.”

Cooooma BLC A

ine Board ous of the rote it
clays in ensuring tnat Diglome opeates ing
frC'me' whicnis congstent with the ~ighest
stondards of corporate governance. The
sundernic nes accelerated the evelution in
the aoproaches of sharehclders and other
taxehoiders 1c these ond broader topics.
Financigl perfarmanice is no ionger the sole
guichng reasan for o zorporation, instead &
must consider s plore and role in society,
e resilience and its abiity 1o create vaiue
over tire for o wide range of derent
staxeholders. Throughout the lost few veors,
we have developed our appreach and
thinking around shareholders and
stakeholders, how we capture their views
and deliver thenr interests. A coe elemert
ot tnis s the work that the Boaord haos done
aver The year to ensare that Diplorma
cortridutes o wider society trrough
sustainable, lorg-term practices as well as
through our De ivering Value Responsibly
{OVR}Y targets. Further information or our
sastainabilty programmes can be found on
pages 42 10 53. We have alee continued 1o
evove and emoed our DVR progromme
'h rougnout the Grour, NSIghts “rom cur
OVR progromrme hove been used to intor
steps taken Dy the Board, executive
managernent ond our bus nesses 1c
improve the efficiency of svetems and
processes, with the goat of furter
enDowering our Coileggues, Increasing
agilty and speed in executior and
enhancing e alcountaDinty.

is very coneci

at

EHective wodership a~d optimal cofiengue
engagement depends or o heu T"T‘y.
empawered and pastive Dosness Sulture.
Jiotorma has @ strong purpose, set of values
and cohesive cultura! fundamentas vwmich
Qovern our SCTIONS QN0 Do wdunce
across our voriec b even in recent
challenging times. 7
outtdre has beern par
as ou” colleogues co-
new waye ot work
e Boare has o
culture con be foun

e thes yeat
“Qp\ to

o or page P9

governante protenses,
and af Cwe*\f\/ al Boord

the Group,

0 Wy e

:."SU.M)F\ Z 2 Seliniainils

CUr sNarenc

Lana

Board succession and evaluation

Board succession remaing o key area

of actvity and tacus. Foliowing the
retirement of John Nicholos ot our Anaual
Genera Meet'ng (AGMY on 19 January 2022,
cgssumed the role of Char of your Beard,
Barbara Gibbes stepped down as CFO on
30 September 2022, and Chris Davies was
appointed 1¢ the role on 1 Novernper 2022
Arne Thorbur~ and Andy Smite are due 1o
etire pror to the 2024 AGM ond thereiore
e Boord nas commenced the process of
seeking sutable candidates totake over
trer Committee Charr positions. The Board
s keenly awore ¢ the need for diversity and
inclusicn, which is ¢ ey component of the
Grous's DVR programme. The Board will
continue to set the right conditions and
lead by excmpie th-ough ts ow approoch
to inciusion and diversity goross its
composTion; further m.O'motion can be
found m our Nommination Committes Report
on pages 108t 113

Akey aspect of good governonce is for the
Boord to eritically self-analyce itself, its
Tembers and Committees in order to
continual y irmprove its effectiveness. The
Board carries out effectiveness reviews
annuaity, and in FYZZ this was undertoken
nternaly - iine with the Code, Thie
svafuation Ros aiso enabled the Bocrd 1o
dentify opportunities for U to further
rrprove s effectiveness; additiona! detail
on the evaruation results and areas of
agreed focus can be foung on poge 113

The Board's priarties for 2023 rermain
consistent with o continued focus onthe
implementaticn of the Group’ strotegy;
cnallenging ond emmpowering rmonagerent;
SUCCELLINnT nning and ranagemien? of
risk. Your Board is pleced to execute its
stewardsh'p “0'e 1o ensure that the Group

ntmuef o evorve, scale and deliver
‘org-term sustainable growth, We will asc
cortinue 1o De :}quﬂ. adapTing our thinking
rmd priceinies ond Dromoting the nerss
st cuninvestors, emmployees and other

stavehologrs over the Coming yaors,

Cyar AOM A

hope That e sharenode
vol, will be oo e o ottend 1o ™
Sogre of Directors and dis
vou fes are mmpo TINT 1o 1h
fthe Group,

David Lowden
Chair

o]
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GOVERNANCE AT A GLANCE

Ethnic diversity Gender diversity Length of tenure

100% MNon ath sicmine 'ty " 87% Mcle 57% O 3vyears
439% Females 14% 36 yeors
29% -9 years

Skills and experience
B2B, Industrial & Digtrit: 1o seets "YY XXX
Retoil and FMCE Sed 1o, o000
Finarcial and Risk Mar courmars @ . 00
Ciperations . . @ . .
Customer Service . . . . .
Health & Safety . . .

Srrotey R YYxry’
M& A /Financing " T XXX X )

IMternational Business . . . . . . .

Board and Committee attendance FY22 (as at 30 September 2022}

Member Board Audit Committee Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee

David Lowden 8/8 - 4/4 676

John Nichelas 3/3 1”1

Ehnny Thomson  10/10 ' -

Barbara Gibbes 9/9

Anne Thorburn 10/10

Andy Smith 10/10

Geraldine Huse 10/10

Dean Finch' 9/10 .

1 Degn Tinch was unable to otte o0 o T o e B T R R L e I T LA T s L T -] REA SN

a\angég to the Board N
- John Nicholas stepped down from the David Lowder was appaintaed as Chair of - Barborz Gibbes stepped down from the
Board on 19 January 2022 t Boars and hamination Committee Soard on 30 Septermbear 2022

anary 20227
Board activity and focus area

5 : 75

Stictegy and strategic execution . Opezrations

Cellzogues and Culture Governance

27 Diplema PLC Annuzl Report 2022




Our governance framework

The Board comprises the Chair, Zxecutive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directars, and is responsible for the performance and
wong-terrn success of the Company, including health and safety, leadership, strategy, velues, standards, contrels ond risk monaggement.

David Lowden

Audit Committee
Chair: Anne Thorburn

Oversees and monitors the Cornpany's
financial stetements, accounting
processes, audit (internal and external],
internal controls systems and financial risk
management procedures. Also monitors
the effectiveness of the internal audit
function and reviews the external auditor
independence and performance.

See mare an pages 102 to 107,

Treasury Committee
Provides oversight of treasury activities in
implernenting the treasury policies
approved by the Board.

Anne Thorburn

TEITD

tz nerfor trer

Board Committees

Nomination Committee
Chair: David Lowden

Regularly reviews structure, size and
composition of the Board and its
Committees. Identifies and nominates
suitoble candidates to be appointed to the
Board. Leads the Board's succession
planning and keeps the senior leadership
needs of the Group under review.
Oversees the development of a diverse
succession pipeline.

See more on pages 108 1o 113,

Administration Committee

Conducts general business
administration on behalf of the Company
within clearly defined limits delegated by

the Board and subject to the matters
reserved 16 the Board.

AN

~
AvE

Independent
Non-Executive Directors

e gt

Remuneration Committee
Chair: Andy Srith
Reviews and recommends the framework
and policy or Executive Director and
senjor management remunaration.
Reviews workforce remuneration policies
and alignment with culture,
See more on pages 114 to 138.

Disclosure Committee

Oversees the disclosure of rmarket
sensitive information.

Executive Directors

—

amz T p eyt ne ot g 0

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Executive team
e T e T
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

David Lowden
Board Chair & Nomination Chair

Joined
October 2021

Current external appointments:
Senior Independent Directer,
Morgon Smdo \ cic

- Chair, Capita

Relevant skills and experience:

- Industria’ and Distribution Sectors
- Finoncial ans Rize Managerrent
- Operations

- Straregy

- M&A and Financing

— International Business

Past appointments:

- Chair. PageGrour ol

- Senior Independent Director,
Berendsen pic

- Chair, Hurtswoth pic

- Non-Executive Director, Waliom Hil oic
amnd Cane & Wiicless Wordvade pic

- Crief Executive, Tay-or Neison Sof-es

Johnny Thomson
Chief Executive Officer

Joined
February 2019

Current external appointments:
- Nene

Relevant skills and experience:
BZE ndustriar, Detribution and Serve
Secters

- Fincencial anz R'sk Management

- Ooerations and Custome- Service

- Stroveqy

- M&A and Financing

- Internatisnal Bus

Past uppo:ntments-
- Lj"\','L‘I.J Finance Director
Cormrposs Sroup PuC
Regiona Managing
Arenica Camrpass G

Chris Davies
Chief Financial Officer

Joined
Novsier L‘_,LA

Relevont skills and experience

SERTI A leA

ST et

Anne Thorburn
Senior Independent Director & Audit Chair

Joined
September 2075

Current external appointments:
- MNon-Executve Director and Cnair of the
Audit Comnmittee, TT Dectron'cs pe

Relevant skills and experience:
E28 industral and Memafocturng Sectors
Financial and R'sk Management

- Strategy

- M&A and Financing

- Internationa. Business

Past oppointments.

- Chief Fingncial Officer, Exova Group ple
- Group Finance Din
British: Polytnere Industres ple

Nor-Executve D rector, B'G oic

Past appointments
- Cnief Fingncion Office

1G' Erpr ess Grous PLO
er and Treasurer

- Orouz Ting
and intenmm Graun TR0 Inchcane oic
Chiet Fnanciol O cer for North Ammerza,

Diazec sic

Current external appeintments
- “on-Ex
Mooy

~ o
e Sroun PO




Andy Smith
Independent Non-Executive Director
& Remuneration Chair

Joined

Febryars

“1

2015

Current external appointments:
- Nore

Relevant skills and experience:
Healthcare Fetal, "MCG and Ltites
Sectors
Operctiors, HR and Customer Servce
Strotegy ana Risk Managerrerit

= Sastamaniity, Diversity Fquity & incus’on

and Heoite & Satfery

y
- mternatona Busness

-
 Chrector

. Comipany PLOC

Retal ana rechnclogy Direct

CSevern et Senvioes

tor Severa Tront pic

Geraldine Huse
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
Jomugry 2020

Current external appointments:
- Presidert, Procter & Garrble, Conads

Relevant skills and experience:

- Reta'land FMCG Sectors

- Customer Service

- Sadies and Morketing

- Divers'ty, Equity & inzivsion

- QOrgarsatonal Devewprment
Imteraationa Business

Past appointments:

- Chief Exacitive Officer, PAG Centrai
Cirope

- Chain of t

Detr buton

nsttute of Grogery

John Morrison
Group Company Secretary
& Head of Legal

Joined
A 2020

Committee membership

Noinotion

Chair

Dean Finch
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
Mgy 2020

Current external appointments:
- Grows Chief Executive, Percimrnon PLC

Relevant skills and experience:
- BZB Indu

Finangat and Risk Marog
- Ope-ationsand Custs
- Heot & Sotety

- MARL gz ialstatetiaty]

errent
ner Setvice

i Business

Past appointments:
Chiret Drocutive OHioes

L Chet Bxecutive

Ciperatng Ofhoer, &

ral Services ond Retan Secton

yioday 216330418
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible to shoreholders for
the Group's financia! cnd operctional
performcnce, “tgk management, culture,
and is caliectively responsiole for promating
the iong-ter success of the Group.

The Board is respensibie for monitoring
progress “nade against strategic objectives,
approving proposed actions and ensuring
that the appropriate internal contiols are in
place and that they ave operating effectively.

There s ¢ formal schedule of matters
reserved for the Board wnich sets out the
structure under which the Board manages
its responsitilities, oroviding guidance on
how 1t discharges s authority and
manages the Board's activities. Tre Boaord
is nssisted by three principal committees
{Audit, Nomination and Rermunerotion),
sach of which is responsibie for reviewing
and dealing with mctters within its own
terms of reference.

Matters reserved for the Board
The Board has a formal schedule of
matters reserved for its decisions:

purpose, strategy and management
values, culture and stakeholders
membership of the Board and other
appointrments

financial and other reporting and
controls

audit, risk and internal contrals
contracts ond capital structure
communication

rermuneration

delegation of authority

corporate governance and other
matters

JA i

LD TmELTTT st

ROLES IN THE BOARDROOM

Non-Executive Chair




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MONITORING CULTURE

Purpose, cuhlture and vaolues
e Board it responsible for ensunng ot
e Group achieves ite purpace, wr
consistently deliver yalae and revicrd its
sioreholders by moking o differcrce to cur
colieagues, customes G"Tu comraunties, In
reviewing and ensunng the impienemtetion
of the Group's strategy. the Board ensures
that *he objectives of our purpose are met
while alse toking ‘mto account the risks ane
opportunities facing the Group.,

—+
o]

Tre 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
the Code! emphasises the importance of
the roie of the Board regarding cu ture, sty
specihic recommendotions that the Soard
assesses and monitars. Qur decertralised
mode! means that culture is ernedded i~
our businesses, each of whicn has 18 can
umigue aspetts which we Delieve are citical
1o e gutonommy ard eraoowe Saeot at
underpins the Group's success. Howevar
there are core shared alies across our
businesses: respect, continuous
improverment aond accountaly’ Ty,

Dur'ng the year, the Board has reerni
culture ina numoer of ways, Thig a
husmzass visits, presentations from Sectar
leadersinip, stroteqy revisw Se52iNns 07 vir
as updates on peasle and tuture fi
U'swup HR Director. Sucvessful y sca
rva:ue-odd maoce, requires comsTar i
chML an, znd our culture has o onticar o
15 plgy i1 supporting growth. Waen
censidenng acauisition stretegas, Cutural
fit 15 atso an importatt crea of focus and

Siscussion.

Dne of the <oy ways i anicn the f
con experence cnd evaloate the ¢
trrcugh mesting with colleagues acrcss our
Businesses. We were delighted to trave 10
the USA in March 2022 and viet Windy Ty
Wire in Chicago ang He-cules Atrerareset
riiouisvile. The results of our Groug
Cﬁlieagup E-"-goaerrwe'* S
or page 3610 57) have @il prowised
further insight.

Lt vey )

How the Board monitors culture

The Board

- Strateqy ipnintes

- CEO repent

- Presentations by the Group HE Director
b@(’ of and function presentations

- LT C\, ee engagement survey

- blte oits

- Board Comrttees

Our Board Comrmritiees oiso play an

HToo-tant rele m rmor\itoring our cutture:

- Remuaneratior Commitiee receives
apdates from the Group HR Director thot
provide ar overview of pay structures
acrose the Groun and their olignment
with our purpose, volues and stategy.
Tris gliows the Commuttee to ensure trat
the relevamt policies and practices are
Zomsatett it Sur volues,
Audit Committes has ove s 'get of interna
Conurois and continuous access to internal
Judit, poth of which can give ar
indication of cutture, pert cu.aly Beming
nor gy negative elerrents thaot don't
aigr with tne Grous's culture.

Employee engagement

Ihe Boasd s comritted to enguzing
wtherroioyvees and has corsiveed the
e ployes engoagement methocs specified
by the Code bur felt thot aiteraative
metheds are more Jooroptiate. Given

e Oroup's Jecentralised madel and e
geographical spread, the Scord nos

mued wtn g mult faceted approach
2 enoagzement wth the gobalworkforee
mot lod oy amy one Director o grougs

We consider that e-gagerent by the «wca
Monaging Directors (MDs; with taer owr
wnrkiorce, 1*‘@9”\8 weth strong channes
e unicotion from MDs 1o their

ve Sector CEO as wgl

v SIIGILE

The Boord {eels we  informes un col's
ViIews Ond Iy i
of methods to \u”‘ﬁh|

sague

mgtiers an

requiremente

Regular upgatos 1o the Boord ot every
scheduied Boord rresting on peor'e
rmatters. Over the post vear, co leogue
we'ibeing and morale hove Deen areas ot
keen focus.

Calengue, talert ond cuiture updaies
fromn the Group A Director

Trne Rernraration Commitiae revews
workforce pay practices ocress Dicloma
The Baard reguiarly undertckes s'te visits
Executive Board merbers regularly
imteract with indwdogl businesses and

our fiat stroctare ensures st-ong chanreis

of commrrunicotio

Tre BOO"'j WaQs p’esemted vith ~he
cutcemes of the Group Colleague
Ergugerr er Survey and diestussen (e
toget-er with key learmimgs. 'We wee
aelighted witn the high portcipation
angc engagement ndex score; the Ul

ote

results of The survey are detallec on ooges

3610 57
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Set out below are seme o the key activities

Strategy & strategic execution

25%

- Regularly reviews
performancs againet the strotedy
including cotioms taken in respect of
managing trz pandersic.

- Presertatone by the Corporote
Developmment Director and Scctot
leadership on strategic priorties and
execution against those pricrities

- Reviewed ord discussed our E5G strategy
and approach, Delivering val.e
Responsitly.

8 - Reviewed ard opproved the Gre
M&A and business 2evelopm
activites, reorganisations and
other projects.

- Strategy review sessior,

o the Groop's

-

port 2022

na deciziors made by the Board in the year.

Finance

20%

- Received
perfar oo,

- Approven the 2023 budget; monitored
perforrmance against the 2022 budget
through regular presertations from the
CFO.

tes on the Group's finoncicl

- Assessed and approved the proposed

dividend payments, balancing the views
of various stakeholders.

- lnwvestor relations: received regular reports
inciuding share register movement and
teedback from analysts and investors.

- Presertations from Tax and Treasury
Functicns.

- Control of Treasury and Tax policies.

I

10%

- Regulor updates from the CEO.

- Monitored and discussed the impact
of Covid-1@ on the Group's operations.

- Moden Slavery Statement.

- Sector presentations.




Colleagues & culture

15%

- Reviewed Group Celleague Engagement
Survey.

- Received reports on work*orce wellbeing
throughout the vear,

- USA site visits.

- Talent and succession undate.

- Whistleblowing reports.

15%

Received reports on the macroecoromic
erwironmert, world everts and ermnerging
trends.

Annual risk review: review of principal
risks to ensure they remain appropriate
together with mitigating octiity;
reviewed and opproved the inclusion

of new and emerging risks.

Gluarterly risk updates.
Cybersecurity briefing.
Annual Insurance Review.

8]

Governance

M3IAIIA

15%

day 318210435
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

5/5

Anne Thorburn
(Chair)

Andy Smith 5/5

Geraldine Huse 5/5

Dean Finch 5/5

The role of the Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for
ensuring that the Group maintains a strong
control environment. it provides effective
governance over the Group's financial
reporting, including oversight and review
of the systemns of internal control and risk
rmanagemenrt, the pertformance of internal
and external gudit functlions, as well as the
behaviour expected of the Group's
employees thraugh the whistleblowing
policy and similor coges of conduct. The
Committee continues to focus on
menitaring and overseeing managerneant
on these improverments 1o governanae,
compliance and finan<ial safeguards.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website ot www.dipiomapic.com

102 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

Reviewed and agreed the scope of audit
work 1o be undertaker by the external
auditer and agread the terms of
engagemeant and fees (o be paid for the
externol oudit.

Reviewed the Annual Report & Accounts
and received reports from the CFG and
the external auditar on the key
accourting issues and areas of significant
judgement,

Reviewed the report on compliance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018
and reports on the provision of
inforrnation to the auditor,

Reviewed the repart from the CFO on the
controls in place to mitigate fraud risk.
Reviewed the Half Year Announcerment
and received reports from the external
auditor on the key accounting it .-~ - |
areas ¢f significant judgemer!

Reviewad the trading updates.

Reviewed the effectiveness of 1

internat control and risk maran
procedures and where aprroy .
recomrendations to the Board o

for improverment.

Invited the Group internal Aadit Lireo: 2
to attend meetings to rew'=we the el
of the internal audit work
year and to agree the sco)|
interno! audit work to be iz
following year.

Reviewed the UK Corporat= 0w
Code 2018 and future ¢

section 172 Companies

Approved the Comimit s

programime for 2023,

Approved the Going C s wrm wo s
Staternents.

Continued to rmonitor i

audit reform ard cheruin 2

Received training and »=

external advisars on ©

reporting requirement:

Owversaw the audit pe-tire

ol b soarenid
S TS I
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Dear Shareholder

The Audit Cornmittee assists the Boorgin
discharging its responsibilities with regara to
monitoring the integrty of Group financial
repoating, exterral and interncl cudits ard
contrais. This includes advising on the
regppontment and independence of
externd’ auditors and assessing the qualty
of their services; and reviewing the
effectiveness and cppropriateness of the
Company's internai audit activities, internai
contrsls and managertert systerrs.

During the yeor erded 30 Septervber 2022,
the Comrmitiee hos ensured thaot it hos hod
oversignt of all these greas while s
focusing on diverse changes 'n the external
environment, both requlatory and palitical,
including any contirued residug impaoct

of the Covid-1% pandernic, which has haa
arange of implications o the risk
management activites of the Cermpany.

“Adapting to
a changing
environment and
new ways of working
to ensure financial
integrity and robust
and effective internal
controls.”

o PO Lo at Rer ot

The Committee continues to maonitor the
uncertainties arising from these changes
and consider the management and
mtigation of tnese risks in addition, the
Curramitzee has received reports on internal
audits for the Group's businesses, together
with several deep dive sessions including

in resoect of cud#ts of recently acquired
bus nesses, oz well as updates on the steps
being taken to address internal audit
Hndings and control issues.

'cornmented in last year's report that the
Committee was mindful of the charging
governance landscope and potental weight
of anticipated reguiation in the near future,
given the number of recent formai reviews
undertake~ regarding ditferent aspects of
corporate governance and audit market
reform | porticolar, we note the UK
governmant’s proposed reforms to the audit
ond corporate governance regime which
were publshed on 31 May 2022 and whicn
include the creation of a new requ.ator for
the audit industry and increased disclosure
reguirements in respect of internal controls.
in anticipation of these reformes and under
tne supervision of the Committee,
~ranogeent has started planning for
expected changes, including prefiminary
steos in determining the scope and contents
of the Company's audit and assurance policy

The Cormmittee has @lso monitored
nitatves of other requlatory autharities

1 orovide investars with consistent,
comnporable and -eliable informction on
chimete-resoted and 556 matters. We are
supportive of regulation that enatles
miormed nvestrment decisions and suprott
efforts to encourage harmonisation cioss
reguisieTy regimres.

As Audit Chalr, | hove regalar conversations
witt the CFC, Group Internal Audit Director,
Graup Financial Controter, Group Cormpany
Secretery & Head of Legal and alse the audit
oo-tner at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(Pwi), our exte noi guditor

ZwC has now comgigted its fifts full annual
cycle, ond we value the nigour and chalienge
of ‘ts acprogch. am pieased 1o report thgt
agoin there have been no sigrificant control
deficiencies or accouanting irregurarties
-eported to the Committes this year, The
Committee plans to commence o retender
process for the oudit during 202672027 for
the FYZ28 Annuar Report and Accourts in
order to mare any necessary changes to
oroviders of other serv'ces in a timely ans
arderly fashion and tc agpal~t an aud'tor
betore the start of thot year asthis is intne
best interests of our sharehoiderss, lam
confident thot the Audit Committee hes
carried out its duties effectvel, and oo
migh stondard during the year, providing
ndependent aversight vith the suoport

of management and assurgnce from the
external guditors. In accordance with LK
regulations, PwC adheres 1o ¢ "otaten
nalicy based en best practize ond the Grous
engagement partnes will se-ve o period of
no longer than five years. Chiis Bur-s
becarme the lead audit partner Tor e yeor
ended 30 September 2018 folowing the
appointment of PwC, and thererare this wili
ke his final audit.

look forward to meeting shareholders ot
the Annual General Meeting on 18 January
202% and will be hoppy to resnond 1o any
guestions relgting to the actaities of the
Auadit Commirttee.

Anne Thorburn
Chair of the Audit Committee
21 Novernber 2022
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Audit Committee

The Cornmittes is chaired by Anne Thorburn
ond comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Committee acts
independently of the Executive Directors
and management. Our members have

a range of skills and the Committee as a
whole has experience relevant to the Sectors
in which the Group operates. Anne has
recent and relevant financial experience,
as required by the Code.

The Group Company Secretary & Head of
Legal acts as Secretary to the Committee,
The Executive Directors olso attend
Cormmittee meetings and subject rmatter
experts are invited to present on specific
topics as ond when required. The
Committee met with the external auditor
during the year, without the Executive
Directors being present.

The Audit Committee confirme that the
Compary has cormplied with the provisions
of the Cormpetition & Markets Authonty
Order thraughatt its financial yvear endeg
30 Septermiber 2022 and up 10 the dote of
this report.

Financial reporting and significant

financial judgements and estimates

The Committee cansidered and assessed:

- the full yeor and no!f vear results, and
trading updates for recommendaotion
1o the Board:

- the appropriateness of accounting
policies and practices, as wed as critical
accaurting estimates and key
judgernents; and

- whether the Annua Report, taken as
o whiole, is fair, baicrced and
understandazle ond provides the
information necessary for shareholdes
1o assess the Group's posion and
performance, business reode! and
strateqgy.

~
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The Comimittee considered the matters set
out below gs being significant in the context
of the consolidated financiat statements for
the year ended 30 Septermber 2022, These
were discussed and reviewed with
managerment and the external auditor; the
Comnmittee then challenged judgernents
and sought clarification where necessary.

The Cornrmittee considered the judgerments
rmade in preparing the financial staterments,
including the accounting tor acguisitions
and assec’ ated valuation of intangible
assets. the provisions for excess and
siow-rmoving invertory, the potential for
impairment of goodwilt and the
approprigteness of the Going Concen
assureption, The Cormmmittee also reviewed
the maverments in the Group's defined
eneht pension schemes.

Accounting for acquisitions and
disposals

Trne Cormnmittee reviewed the accounting
for acouisitions completed during the year,
i partcular the acquisitions of R&G Fluid
Power Group and Accuscience. The

sitors were material for the FY2Z audit
L, naccordance with PR 3 (Business
Combirotions), mancgement has
performed aful fair value exercise for these
w0 acguisitions i this year's financial
staterrents. As part of their oudit of the
Groug, the external auditor has perforead
WOTK QN

o) +me Purchase Price Allocation (PPAS;

b} the noeming baiance sheet as at the
acgusition dete; end

¢} auait of any matenas tair value
adiustments arising on the acquisition
Soance smeet.

Tne Committee reviewad and challenged
managerneit’s assessrrent, which also
included congideration of tne exvterna audit
fadinse, Tne Committee concluded tat
e scesu g for these Two acguisitions
2na the otner five smailer acquisitions s
appronute.

The Group compeeted two disposals in

the year for combined proceeds of £21m
resulting in a net profit on disposal of £7.3m.
The profit on disposal nas been presented
within ocguisition ond other reloted items.

Provisions for excess and slow-

moving inventory

The Committee reviewed the report of

the CFO that set out the gross balonces,
together with any related provision agaoinst
the carrying value of inventory. The
Committee reviewed the bases used 1o
value inventory held across the Group; they
qiso considered the oppropriateness of
provisions held against the carrying value
of inventory, hoving regard to the age and
volumes of inventory relative to expected
usage and considering the octions taken in
respanse 1o supply chein disruptions during
the year and any continued impaoct of the
Covid- 19 pandern’c.

Following its review, which also \ncluded
consideration of the externcl audit findings
the Cornmittee concluded that the
provision for excess and slow-moving
mventory s approphiate.

Impairment of goodwill

The Cornmittee considered tre carrying
vaiue of goodwill and the assurmptions
underlying the imparment revew. The
judgements in relation to goodwill
impairment largely relate 1o the
assumptions underlying the calculations of
the value in use of the cash-generating units
{CGUs) being tested for impairment. These
judgements are primarity the caleculation of
the discount rates, which hove increased
due to rising “isk free -ates and the cost of
debt, the achievapility of managerment's
forecasts in the short to mediurm term
cgainst the backaros of a challenging
MACroeconormc environment, resid gl
impoct of the Covid-i9 pandemic and the
se-ection of the .ong-term growth rate.
Fo'lowing the review, which alse included
comsiderction of the externat audit findings,
the Cornrrittee concluded that the carrying
value of the goodwi'l recorded is approprate.




Other gudit matters

The Cemmittee alsc considered other less
materigl matters including the valuation of
the Group's oefined benefit scheme grd the
impact of the key actuarial assumptons o
the baiances. The Committee 1s satisfied
with the year end position and the
assumptions used.

In addition 1o the above, the Commities
alsc seeks comments fom the auditor cn
whether the Qroup's businesses *oliow
approgriate policies to recognise materiai
streams of revenue, and their audit work
carried out more generally has assessed
whether there is ony evidence of
managerment override of key internat
controls designed to guard against fraud
or mgterial misstaterment.

Az part of its monitoring of the ntegrity

of the financial statements, the Cormmittee
reviews wniether suitable accounting
policies have been adopted and whether
monagement has made appropriate
estimates and judgements, and seeks
support fram the external auditor te
assess them.

Going Concern and Viability

The Guing Concern and Viability assessment
wos prepared by management. In preparing
the assessment, management carried out
reverse stress testing as wel as scenarc
analysis, Two scenarios were considered

- the base casze and the downside case. The
base cose eflects octual recent troding ond
tares account of ony further residual impoct
of Coud-12. The downside case reflects a
more significant decline in trading, adverse
mmovernents in working capital ond lower
thar forecast operating marging and is
consideres by management 1o be o sevare
but pausibie scenario.

The Group has arrple liguidty and covenant
neadroorm in each scenario for both Geng
Concaem and Viability Statement ourposes.
The Audt Committee reviewed the
assuript ons underpnning each scenario
and ‘s satsHed with management’s
ssrment and conclusicris i respect of
g Congerr, grd Vi ¢ Furthe: detail
sessmient of Viabii'ty and the
Viability Stoternent are et out o0 poge &9
Fuarther detalls ory Geing Concern con be
found on poge 170,

Engagement of the external ouditor

The externai aucitor is engaged 1o express
an opinion on the firancial statements of
the Group and of the Comipany, Tre qudit
includes the consideration of the systems
of internal financial contrel and the dote
contained in the financial statermrents, to
the extent necessary for expressing an oudit
opimen on the truth ond farness of the
financiol staterments,

During the year, the Caommitiee carvied out
an gssessment of the audit process, jled by
the Chair of the Committee and assisted by
the CFO. The assessment focused on certain
crterio that the Cormrmitce considered 1o
be important factors in demonstrating an
effective audit pracess. These foctors
included the quality of tne audit process
ond the robustness of chalienge 1o
management, key audit risks and how these
have been addressed, the planning and
execution of the audt ang the roe of
manage~ent .nthe audit process.

The Commiites was satisfied that the
PwC audit of the Compary and Groun had
provided o robust and effective gudit and
an appropriate independent cnallenge of
the Group's scnio” management. it also
supported the wotk of the Comrittee
through clear and objective communication
on developments in financial reporting

and governance.

The Committee alse overzaw the audit
partier rofation process oz Uhris Burns, the
current fecd audit partner, s dus to rotate
atter this FY22 year end. & replacenent nas
been identified ana hos been shaodow ng the
audit process 1o encure 1 smooth hondere-

o
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Non-audit services

The Committee has approved the Group's
internal guidelines covering the type of
non-audit work thaot can be carried out by
the external auditer of the Group, 17 ight

of the regu-ation set out in the EU Audit
Directive and Audit Regulation 2014 (the
Regulations) ard the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC) Revised Ethical Standard 2019

The Regulations substantially curtail those
non-audit services thet can be provided by
the auditor 1o the Group and in particular
prohibits ol tax related services, inctuding
compliance services as weil as general
advice and all consultancy and advisory
services. The Regulations stipulate that
Board approval is required it eligible
non-audit services, such as due diligence
and similar assurance services, exceed 30%
of the prior year Group oudit fee and the
Company may not allow elig ble non-audit
services 10 exceed 70% of the Group oudit
fee, calculated on a rolling three-year basis.

The CFO does not nave delegated author:ty
te engaoge the external auditor to carry oLt
ary mon- audit work, but must seek approva!
from the Chair of the Audit Comrmittee.

Taxction se vices are not provided by the
Group's current audit firmy; a range of
different firms are used for the provision

of tax advice and any assistance with tax
complionce matters generaiy. in addition,
due diligence exercises o acquisitions and
smitar transactions aré not provided by the
auditor, but are claced with other firme.

The external auditer is retained to carry out
Zssurance services to the Committee in
Zonnection with ‘agreed wpon procedores’
on the Group's naf year corsokdoted
financial stoterments £28 000, The external
auditer alsc provides Scoews 10 115 Viewpoint
TEChnica subscription service {11 200).

With the exception of these services,

PwC has not provided any non-auJdit
services to the Group or its subsidiaries
and has confirmed its independence to
the Audit Committee. Further nformation
is set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statenents,

The Cammittee assures itself of the
auditor's independence by receiving regular
reports from the externcl auditor whicn
provide details of any assignrnemts and
related fees carried out by the auditor in
addition 1o its normal audit work, and these
are reviewed against the abeve guidelines.
PwC has reconfirmed its independence for
the current financial vear,

Risk management and internal control
The principat risks and uncertainties thot
are currentiy judged to have the most
significont impact on the Group’s Iong-term
performance are set out in a seporate
section of the Strategic Report on Interna
Control and Risk Manogement on poges

8010 88.

The Committee is responsitle for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's syster of
internal control. The systern of imterna
control 's designed to manage rather thar
slirminate the r sk of failure to achieve
Cusiness objectives and can only provide
regsonable ond not absolute assurance
against materal misstaternent or loss,

The Group hos the necessary procedures

in piace 10 ensure thot there s an ongoing
process tor identitying, evawating and
managing the principai risks te the Group.
These pracedures are in ling with the FRC's
guidance. The Board has established o ciear
organisationa’ structure with defined
awthority ievels.

The doy-to-day -unning of the Grours
business is delegated to the Erecutve
D.rectors of the Group wno are suproted
ov the meads of eoch pusiness Sectar ang
funct'cnal ~eads of the Groug.

Key financial and operational measures
relating to revenue, cash and receivabies
arereported on a weekly basis. Detailed
mancgement Geeounts and key
performance indicators are prepa-ed

nonthly using o robust proprietary reporting
systern 1¢ coliect and analyse finonciat data
na consistent ‘orrmat. Monthly results are
meagsured against both budget and haoif
year reforecasts which have been approved
and reviewed by the Board. Ali capital
expenditure cbove predefined amounts
must be supported by a paper prepared oy
management.

L Anancial dota s taken directly from each
business’ ricl halance held in therr locai ERP
systern and reanalysed and formatted in o
separate Group manogerment reporting
system, operated by the Group Finance
department. Thei= is ne rekeying of financian
Jota by the Qroup businesses 1o reco't
monthly financiol resu'ts The Group Finance
deoartment continues to develop the
functicnality of tris management reporting
svsterm to provide greater insighs into the
financial and operatisna: activities of the
Oroup's businesses.

The Groug's inter~al auditor regulasly audis
tme base dota ot eacn business to ensure 1t
= properly reported throunh to the Broup
rranagement "eporting systern

Ac part of the year end ciose process, each
busimiess 15 required 1o complete g seif-
assessment thet evaluates the financia
contro: environment in their business,
designed to identify weaknasses in controls.
These assessrents are criticaliv reviewed
by the Group Interna: Audit Director end
evaiunted ag nart of reguiar Interaal

Aoadit reviews

4 sumnmary for egeh blsness s prenored
“or the Auct Commitiee. i add

27, S2rin”
recured

rtermal contrs by reldns O

representgt.on etler,



The Coramties has reviewed the
effectiveness of *he Group's -
managerment and internal control systems
for the periad from 1 October 202110 the
dote of this renort. Toking into Gecount The
reatters set out on pages 82 1o 88 reloting
to principal risks cnd uncerta'nties and the
recorts rom tne Group internar Audit
Director, the Board, with the advice of the
Committee, is satisfied that the Grous Has
in place effective risk management and
Imternc: cortro’ systems,

Internal gudit

Tre Group maintaine an internal gudit
department which reparts directly to both
the CFO and Charr of the Audit Commrmittee,
Tre depertment comprises a Group Interna:
Auait Directar ang a Group irternal Auditor
based at the Group's cffices in London.

In January 2022, the Grous internal Audit
Director preserted his cudit olan for the
vear to the Committee for its approval.
Increasingy during the year, ‘nternal audit
undertoox audits in persor as travel
restnct ons were ifted ina number of key
jurisdictions. The department continued to
effectively re'y ar remote visits with the use
of appropriate cormmunication technojogy
vehere jte viste were not possibie,

e scope of wore carried out by interna
audit generaly focuses on the interna!
Anaricial, operational aond cornpliance
controls cperating within eac™ business,
inciLding r sk mznagernent octivities and
process improvernents, Formal
written reports ore prepared on the resulis
of each internal aud't visit that set ~ut
inTernal control wegknessesrsks identified
during their wory, together with
recom T iendations 1o improve the ntemal
controi enyiranrnent and mitigate these
weaknesiesdrske, These reports are timely
and reguicmy di seed with zenior
mgnagen et s the Sroup. The opotts
chated Ak e ederro Judits

DS nes

are als

Ay the end of the financion year, the Group
Imternal Audit Director formnally reports 1o
the Committee on the results of the internal
audit work carried cut by "is department
during the year The Coninitiee reviews
management’s responses to matters raised,
including the time taken to resofve such
matters. Uipdated reports on progress
against the olan are provided at regular
intervals and the Audit Chair also meets
separately with the Group Internal Audin
Director at least twice o year to review some
of the department’s reports and discuss
their findings.

There were no significant or high-rsk
matters identified in the internal audits
undertaken during the current financial
year. Several recommendations were again
rmade this year to the businesses in regard
1o mplementing adequate and effective
internal controls and praocedures aimed

at improving existing processes around
cybersecurity, inventory managernent

and procurement,

The Committes conducted the annual
review of the effectiveness of the imernal
audit department, including its audit plan,
qeneral performance and retationship with
the external auditors. Based on its review,
the Committee was sotisfied with the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit
function, specifical'y that the ntemnal audit
department is sufficiently independent of
executive management and hags sufficent
resources and scope that is appropriate for
the size and nature of the Growp.

Whistleblowing

The Comrittee aiso monitors the adegquocy
of the Growp's whistiehowing palicy, wh ch
provides the framews 1o enconrmge ond
give employees confidence 1o biow the
whist'e’ and renort rreguiarties. The poley
together with hotline posters, are piaced on
site noticencards acress the Group.
Employees are encouraged 1o roise concerns
via the canfidential rrultiingusl notline,
which is rmanaged by an independent
external company and is available 247

365 days a year.

Adl reports are provided te the Croup
Company Secretary & Head of Legal for
review, to ensure thot they are appropriately
irvestigated - with the support of internal
audit ond exter~al resource, if regured.
Most matters reported through the
whistieblowing service reiote 1 personnel/
HR matters and, wnie these o-e et areas
for review by the Committes, such matiers
are duly investigated n the same manner
Qs any other issue raises.

o]
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

4/4

David Lowden
(Chair}

5/5

5/5

Anne Thorburn.

Andy Smith

Gerd Idine Husé

Y

Dean Finch 4@

E\n Nichelas

The role of the Committee

The Nermination Committes reviews the
composition of the Board and principal
Committeas, corsidering skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity raquirements before
rmaking appropriate recommendations to
the Board regarding ary changes. Lalso
rnanages succassion planning for Directors
and the Group Company Secretary and
oversees succession plonning for senior
leadership across the Group,

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplc.com

108 Diplorna PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

- Recraitmert of a Chief Financial Officer
ard brogder succession planning far
Chairs of Audit and Rermnuneration
Committee,
Consideration of a detailed skills,
experience and diversity matrir that
sought to identity recruitrment priorities
based on idertified gaps, industry
expeciations ard good praclice
Facilitating a more diverse list of potential
candidates chead of the search for two
Mon-Executive Directors by setting clear
objectives for the external search
consultants and ensuring a clear
articulaticn of the company’s ongeing
commitrment to improving diversity in role
specifications.
Consideration of the contributions =i+
effectivenass of the Non-Exec . tive
Directars seeking re alectinn
Annual Genera! M :
recommer i
shareholders (o




Dear Shareholder,

fam plecsed 1o set out beiow the repot on
the activities of the Nomination Cormmittes
during the year.

The Board 's of the view that it is essential
to have on appropriote mix of experience,
expertse, divers'\‘ry and ?ndependence Such
diverse attribites enable the Board as o
whole 1o provide informed opinions and
advice on strategy and reievant topics,
thereoy d'scharging its duty of oversight,
Appointments to the Boord are made
foliowing consideration of the experience
and expertise of ex'sting Oirectors, any
required skill sets or competencies, and the
strategic requirements of the Group. During
2072, the composition of the Board cnanged
slightly, reflecting: {i} Jobn Nicholas
stepping down from the Board, and (i) the
departure of Barbara Ginbes,

A fundarmenta; responsitility of the
Committee s to ersure plans are in piace
for orderly succession to the Board, as well
as our Sroup Company Secretary and seniar
management pes tions, and the Committee
depates these reguidr’y. The main focus of
the Cormmittee during this past year has
been on Board succession planning,
inchuding the oppointment of aur new Chief
Finandial Officer and the search for the
Chairs of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees to ensure these positions are
apponted in tirme for an orderly handover.
The Cammyttee continually monitors the
balance on the Boord 1o ensure we have the
right combination of skills, experience ard
knowledge consiztent with the leng-term
strategy of the Company. This aliows us to
identify vhere further focus is needed in the
romng years and beyond.

We are mindful of the discussions around
improving diversity and inclusion, tegether
with the targets set by the Hampton-
Alexander Review ond the Forker Review.
Foilowing the departure of Barbara Gibbes
at tne end of the fingnaial year, twe out o
en Directors (28.57%) are women, It i
the Board's oim to meet the targets set by
the Hampten-Alexander ond Parker -eviews,
dealing v.ith gerder ong ethnic diversity
respectively, wheah s fecsible given carrent

SUCTOSEInN s

LY

The Boord will maintain oversight of the
range of activities the Group is pursuing
aimed ot increasing the d'versity of cur
workforce - ncluding the executive pipeline
that is essertial for Executive Director
sugcessior pignning, We have written
eisewhere (see page 40) cbout our Group-
wide cpproach te divers'ty and inclusion,
which emanates from the Board and
impocts the appreach of the Nomingtion
Committes.

The FRC's guidonce on boord effectiveness
recognises a breadtn of diversity thot goes
beyond just gender and race, ang includes
personar attenutes including inte’lect,
critical assessment, judgerment, courage,
nomesty and tact; ond the apility to listen
and torge ~elotionsnips and deveiop trust.
This ensures that a board 15 not comprised
of like-minded indvidLals. The Commitiee
agrees that diversity s vital when reviewing
the compasition of the Boarg and setting
the criteric for the recruitrrent of mew
appaintees, alongside succession panning
acuvities, Bxternal search congultants are
expected 1o make every effort 1o put
forward diverse candidaotes for new Board
pos tions. Whilst appointments wili comtinue
to 5e made on merit and aganst obectve
criteria, it renains the Comimties's
intent:cn that the diversity on the Board
wil continue 1o increase over tirme,

The Committes has also maintaned its
focus on the executive successicn pipeling
and senisr managernent succession plans
within the Group. reflecting its responsiility
tC ensure appropTiate olans are i place.

David Lowden

Chair of the Board and Normination
Committee

21 Novernber 2022

“Ensuring the right mix
of skills and
experience to deliver
long-term value for
our stakeholders.”
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Nomingtion Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by
David Lowden, Board Chair. The Committee
comprices the Non-Executive Directors and
meets as necessary to discharge its
responsibiities.

The Group Cormpany Secretary acts os
Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee reviews the composition

of the Board and principal Comimittees,
considering skills, knowiedge, experience
ond diversity requirements before making
appropriate recorymendatiaons to the Board
regarding any changes. It alsc monages
succession planning for Directors and the
Group Company Secretary, and oversees
succession planning for senior leadership
across the Groap.

The Cormmittee’s role and responsibiiities are
set out inits Terms of Reference, which were
reviewed during the year and approved by
the Board.

LR

Process for Beard appointments

ST Al R

Induction and professional development
The Chair, assisted by the Group Company
Secretary, is responsibie for ensuring that
there is a properly constructed and timely
induction for new Directors upon joining the
Board. Upon appointment, all new Directors
are provided with o comprehensive
induction, where they meet with key
rmembers of monagement and formiliorse
themselves with all core aspects of the
Group, its businesses and the markets in
which it operates.

Directors are encouroged, wherever
passible, 1o vist the Group's sites so thot
they con get a better understanding of
the business and interact with emnpioyees
While traveil was ~estricted and comiplex
during the Covid-19 pandermic, site visits

by individual Directors (and the Board os

a whole} have resumed and aftowed
Directors to see Diplorna’s safety and
sustainabiiity processes, tc talk with icca
manage rent and workforces and to dssess
how effectively Diplorma’s culture is
communicoted and embedded at al levels.

Trie Chaur also has the responsitility of
ensuring that Direciors receive training on
a continual basis in support of their ongoing
development. This training is provided by
way ot technical updates, reports and
briefings orepared for Board meetings.
Oirectors haove full access to our corporate
advisors as weil as a regular and
comprehensive supply of financial,
operational, strategic and regulatery
infermation to nelp thern discharge their
responsibilities.

During the year, the Board held a strategy
review session to confirmm the Company’s
strategic goals as well as recenving deteiled
updates on operations a~d support
functions.

Step 1

The Committee
reviews and
approves an
outline brief and
roles fication
and appoints a
search agent 1o
facilitate the search

10

Triniarig PLO Anmnac, ?

Step 2

A Committee
member

discusses the
specification with
the independent
search aogent, who
prepares an intial
longfist of
candidates

The Committee
then defines a
shortlist of
condidates and
we hold interviews

Step 4

The Committee
makes o
recommendation
to the Board for its
consideration

Step 5

Following Board
approval the
appointment is
announced in line
with the
requirements of the
FCA's Listing Rules
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Induction of our new Chair
cind Losve ter v i ted Bearc

crehiensive
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Calendar of activities
November 2021 January 2022

Meeting all Board Handover with
colleagues, both outgoing Chair
individually and

collectively

Meeting Group
heads of functions

Dplorma PLC Anmosl Repert 2022

March 2022

Visit to Windy
City Wire in

hicage, and
Hercules
Aftermarket in
Louisville in the USA

Visit 1o Shoa! Group,
IS Group and
Clarendon in

the UK

April 2022

Chair G&A
published in the
Purple Portal, the
Group’s newsletter
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Onboarding processes

The decentralised nature of the Group nas
always made induction processes compex.
The pandemic led us to reconsider how
these processes can be conducted
effectively. Customarily there wouid nave
oeen face-to-foce meetings with key
executives and management, ntroductions
1c their direct reports, one-te-ones following
the nitial meetings, and site visits arranged
to key businesses. Now parts of the
induction pian are conducted vio video cals;
particulariy where key people are tocated
outside of Eurcpe. This permits Directors to
have considerably greater exposure tc the
various businesses ond personnel and we
are pleases that we can once again
encourage Directors to visit our businesses
and appreciate our culture and colleagues in
person as wel as continuing to deveion their
understanding of each bouness

Succession planning

The Committee formally reviews succession
planning for the Beard, Groap Comgzany
Secretary and Heod of Legal, and senior
management at least once eoach year,
taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group ond the
background, skills and expertise that will be
reguired by the Group in the future. During
2022 foliowing the appointment of the new
Board Chair, the Committee undertook o
more thorough analysis of the Board's
competencies. The Committee also
considered how the Board would be required
to evolve 1o be fit for the future, as wel’ as
any potential gaps that rmay need 1o be
filled through succession or traming,

The CEQ manages the development of
succession plans far executive
management, and these are overseen oy
the Cormmittee. The CEC and Group HR
Director presented a succession planning
update to the Boord -n Jonuary 2022

The Committee s aware of the mMportance
of identitying criticai roles witnin the
businesses to ensure we retain and motivate
key talent and have the necessary skills for
the future. Overall, 1 was cear that we have
0 good executive and manogerment
succession planning process and,
importantly, succession is being actively
managed by the Executive team 1o achieve
the desired long-term outcomes.

The standard term for Non Erxecutive
Directors is three years. They normally serve
for @ maximum of nine years, which is spiit
across three terms of three years each, Al
Directors are subject o annual re-election.
With only specfic exceptions that maoy be
necessary to ensure Board continuity,
Nan-Executive Directors shal. not stand for
re-election after they have served for the
period of thelr independence, as determined
vy applicabe UK standa-ds, of rine years.

L_ength of tenure

2019 2020 202% 2022 2023

2024

2025 2076 2027

Daovid Lowden

Andy Srrith

Anne Thorburn'

Deo~ Fincn




Board evaluation

Tre Baard conducts an annuol evaluat'on of its perfarmance ard that of s committees and, in accordance with good practce, engages
an independent third-party facilitator 1o assist in this process evary three vears. For the year ended 30 September 2022, the evaluation of

the Buard as o whote and of its committees was undertaken internaity, led by the Board Chair. Board members completed nquestionnaires
-egording the operation and effectiveress of the Boara and its committess. Findings were collated by the Group Company Secretary and
the Boord Chair discussed the conciusions and recommendcticns separatety with egch Director,

The pe-formance of the Non-Executive Directors was reviewed by the Board Chair. The performance of the Executive Directors was
reviewed by the Board Chair and the Mon-Executive Directors and the resuits of the 2022 evaluation process were considerad by the Boord.
The conclusion was that the Boord cortinued to function weil and the onboarding of the Board had been weil received, resulting in
improvernerit to Board processes and workplans. Directors opercted in ar otrmeosphere of open ond constructive debate with a good
breadth of skills, exper'erce, and viewnoints. Following the evaruation, the below recommendations were mode:

Recornmendation Action
Consider the diversity of the Board, from both g gender and Nomination Committes to address diversity requirements 'n
ethnicity standpoint. suczessor plenning and during the Non-Executive Director

recruitrment process.

Corntinue to challenge and support on the prodress of DVR octions.  Consider ESG skiflsets during the hon-Execative Director recruitrment
process, creation of an E5G Committee cs wel as erharced focus on
clI'mate-related fincnciol risks.

improve information shared with the Board tc enhance visitility on - Board papers to include executive summarnses to bring focus to
certain topics ond improve decision-rmaking. discussions, and Sector presemiations to the Board to include key
indicators of custormer and supplher perfarmance,

The Company expects 1o update sharehalders on the progress made ir relation to the matters identified above = ts 2023 Annual Report.

Key areas for development
The below recommendations were mooe foliowing the 2021 external Soard performaonce evalugtion.

Recommendation Action

Consider increasing the size of the Board ond bringing in furt-er Nomingtion Cormmittee "eviewed the composition of the Soard
skills reievant ta Ciplerma's size and oparanons and inzarparated this nte successesn planing,

Board troining programme 1o be evolved Additionai sessions included as patt of annual calendar as well as

oespoke sessions frorm advisars as required.

Ermpioyee engagement to pe reviswed. increased number of site visits, with Non-Executive Directors
conducting these indvidually on cccasion and previding feedback
1o e Board,

Board scnedule to be reviewsd. Board dinrmer nithe evening prior 1o msetings included to cover
specfic oreas of focus ar concern ona oeeet further inforo
enzogement with key management

Vi Oriorea PLC Annee: Renmt
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member

Meetings attended

Andy Smith (Chair) 6/6

Anne Therburn &/6

David Lowden &6/6
6/6

676

Geraldine Huse
Dean Finch

John Nicholas - 11

The role of the Cormmittee

The Committee, on behalf of the Board,
agrees all aspects of the remuneration

of the Executive Directors, it agrees the
strategy, direction, and policy framework
for the remuneration of the senior
executives who hove significant influence
over the Group's ability to meet its strategic
chijectives, The Committee also oversees

all workforce remuneration policies.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplc.com

14 Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

~ Approved Rermuneration Committee work
prograrmme for 2022.

Reviewed the AGM 2022 votes on the 2021
Remuneration Committee Report.
Reviewed and proposed the new
Direclors’ Rermnuneration Policy, and as a
result. propased amendments te the rules
of the Diplomg PLC 2020 PSP

Approved the service contract for the
new CFO.

- Approved annual performance borus
targets ond the subseguent bonus awards
for 2022,

Approved new Performence Share Flan
(PSP cwards for Executive Directors and
Group senior managernent,

Confirmed the vesting percentages for
the P3P awards made in December 2019,
which crystallised in 2022,

Reviewed Executive Directors’ salaries,
pensions, and benefits.

Reviewed the fees of the Chair and
Non-Executive Directors.

Reviewed remunerotion framewark o1
Exacutive Team and semior manacarert
in the operating businesses.

Reviewed workforce remuneraticor
framework.

Approved the 2022 Remuneratic:-
Committee Repart.




Dear Shareholder

Az Cnair of tne Board Remnunergtion
Committes (Co'ﬁ"m‘r‘ree}, I o pleased to
present our Directors” Remuneration Report
DR fo the veor ended 30 Sestefroer
2022 ond our revised Rermuneration Policy
for werich sharehoider opproval wil be
sougrt at the Jaruary 2023 AGM.

Context and approach to remuneration
Our pecnie lie ot the heart of cur success.
As our business grows and becomes more
complex, our people, tegms and
organisation must grow with it it is vitaf
that we have the right calibre of people and
that we incontivise excelient performance
and reward tnern when they do. On page
NE. Diplorna's appreach 1o remuneration

s flustrated showing how strategy,

perfor nance ond reward align. in a
decertralisec Srouo, we work hard to
balanze clignrment with iocat accourtability
a~d aalty. Ow reward policies and
practices have supported the growth of the
businecs wesl over the years, During this
poicy peried, our performance has been
excelent and our talented management
tearn have doubred the size of tne bosiness.

“Reinforcing alignment
of strategy and
reward, 2022 was
a very strong year
of performance,
strategic execution
and consequently
reward. Long
term growth and
shareholder returns
are excellent.

Our plans remain
ambitious and we are
pleased to set out our
Remuneration Policy
for the next phase

of growth.”

DAor Gol Rep et

tis against trs backdrop that we have
consideras our re™uneration poticy for the
upcoming three years.

2022 performance and pay

The Diploma team has delivered another
year of strong finoncal resuits, adding 1o
the Group’s 'ong- terrm track recard of
eacellent business performance ond
sharenolder returns. Orgaric growth haos
been driven by revende initiatives, positive
demand, and pricing. Alangside this,
implerneritation of our strategy continues
apoce with the acquisition of naw
businesses 1o bring new capabiities and

apportuities to drive future organic growth.

With regords to scaling, it has been a year
of excelert progress building infrastructure
for scale, developing the torget nperoting
riodel, and evolving the struc tures,
capability and culture of the Group.

Exceilent delivery against our strategic
pricrities of growth, scaling and Delivering
Value Responsibty have resufted in ctrong
performance (shown in table on page 119),
Adjusted cperating profit (+29%), regorted
revenue (+29%) and free cash {+11%)

abt exceeded annual bonus targets {on page
1303, resutting in a full bonus paveent of
125% of salary for both Jomnny Thomson
and Barvara Gikbes.

Our ong-terrr perfarmance cont'nues to
create excelient sharehoider returrs, Qur
tnree-year cormpolnd annual growth rate
(CAGR) for adiusted earnings cer share
(EPS) i5 19%. This exceads the performance
target raximum of 14%, and the return
or adiusted roding copiton ermnployed
{ROATCE} 15 77.2% megning that the
ur.:}erp\r coplying 1o our PSP s inine with
the Group's fnancial model ond meets the
Boards expectation. Our relative three-vear
Tetot sharehclder retvurn (TSR performance
< 'nthe 9lst percentile of FTSE 250
comoanies exc uding finonicial services and
meestrment trusts), rarking 15 out of 138
companies. Bosed on these excellent resclts,
tme Porformmance Share Plan (PSF) (PSP
20195 nas vested at moxirmum Tor Joheny
Tecrvsor smd Barbars Gibbes, as nel
crher PSP porticpants.

as all

Janning Tnomssn s 1oton compensation
for 2022 (shown in the Sngie Figure toble
on poge 129} s £3.87 (2021 L52m) The
dgifference versus last year 5 mainty dus
1o 1ower share price appreciation,

i fine wath the Code, the Commmitiee
reviewed individual Directors’ incentive
clon outcomes and overall remmuneration
rorsidering the Group's underly’ng
perfarrmance, We have not made any
adjustmrents 1o our remunieration schermes
as @ resuit of Covid, ne furlough support
was taxen, and na discretiona adjustments
have beer applied to oLtcomes.
Accordingly, the Committee is satisfied
that the incentive slan cutcomes and the
1oRal remunerston eceives by Executive
Directorsin 'efpecl of the yeor ended

30 Seprembier 2027 are consistent with the
levels of carmpany perfor—ace delivered
ang that the Remuneration Policy is
operatng as mtended

Appointment of new CFO

Chris Davies joned Diplora as CFC on

i Noverrber 2027 ofter Barbara Gibbes

eft the Company on 30 September 2022
Having olaved an important rele in helping
1o steer Doloma thiough the pandemic and
ouiiding strona foundations for the future,
the Corrmitiee deter - ined 1o t-eat Borbaro
s ¢ gong leaver and ha rerruneration
ar-angements on denarture wee in
accordance with the Remuneration Folicy
ang man reles. Her ot Jrrange T ents are
set out o page 125,

We appaintes Cnrls foiowing a thorough
PIOCess, -N’).\r [ cﬂae'\;’—' "T‘[E“'ﬁ”“ \_]r?J
exteng candidotes Dpiomie was Barpa-a
firet 7 qE 5( a 4u’.l" Loietrment and her
pocrege was set according'y. Chris’ pac<oge
1§ COMIMansLraTe wit™ his expengnce gz an
sstaplisned CFO v : excc\ e“t track
scord N gecentral’s
Mu?-l ~ati -‘r\dl v‘jon
"'M—‘Ql"‘r) r\F
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

the remuneration foregone inciuding the
nature, vesting dates and performance
requirements artoched to that
remuneration and payments will not exceed
the expected volue being forfeited. Exact
amounts wilt be finalised following the
publication of nis previous employer’s results
and will be disclosed in next year's DRR.

Remuneration in the workforce

The skill and dedication of Biplorma's
colleagues lie at the heart of our success.
The Group ochieved outstanding levels of
colleague engagement again this yeor
imore information on page 36 to 37).
Rermuneration in Diploma provides o caretul
Salance that enabies local decision-making
in line with our decentralised business
model, whilst ensuring guidance and
governance from the Group, and including
areview of pay equity, which is one of the
Group's ESG priarities.

Trne CECS poy ratic for 2022 (detail on page
135) hos reduced from 1800 t0 12901, The
orincipal reason for tne -eduction is lower
share price appraciation from market
moverments. The median pay for UK
cofleagues has remained at & similar level
£29.074 (2021: £29,034), with the addtion
=1 ca. 400 new ernployees from LK
acguisitions. If we exclude empioyees who
joined trrough acquisitions, the medion
way for the UK workforce has incregsed
-rarginailv 1o £29,550.

THis year's Group reward guidance to the
businesses focused on looking after
colleagues. The first oriority was focusing on
oolieagaes affected by infctionary pressures
g ‘*orﬁ the reacro-environiment,

oan d oies -<‘4u1< per
gues "eceived an
‘gher than the

<o ‘K'Ohueb inlower
nrLry, and theae oo
verage increcse of 5":‘
&'“\‘ ~okforee increase.

ﬁ

seror leqoers, the roton

MoNErStion & recoantio”. o G
respansbatEs G powing bus ess anid

neentiysing futare orovts *u‘_med rc
Jipicra’s strategw.

7507 0w CAT U STDIN oL T2 et hary

- W rerngin consciou of

TTve imte T atonG rnarKets,

et 7

The 2022 overall base salery increase across
the Group is 7% for the workforce (2021,
4%;, including senior managers. The
rmanagement tearm and Committee will
conrtinue to review total compensation
proactively in order to ensure our wider
workforce is fairly rewarded. The Committee
considers workforce perspectives when
setting Remureration Policy, Executive
Director compensation and overseeing
senior management cormpensation
frameworks.

Remuneration policy review

The Cormnmittee completed o
comprehensive policy review in 2022, The
review process is set out on page 120 and
covered a number of key factors.

The Group hos increased considerably in size
and complexity in this policy period {shown
inthe diagram on page 120). Since the
apoointmnent of our CEO in 2019, the Group
has doubled in size frorm a combination of
strang organic growth, strategic execution
and the acquisition of 25 strategically
important businesses, Shareholders have
benefited and Diniorma has grown from
FTSE 185 to FTSE 11 over the per:od and the
Group’s plans rernain ansbitious. Designing
our policy to recognise the increased
resconsiodites to attract retain and
FICenTIviSE rGnagement for the next phase
of growth was o top prictity.

ESG is increasingly important to all our
stokeholders and we wish to introduce
targets into our voriable pay. Ensuring that
bonus measures are rigorous, specific,
stretching and go beyond the ‘day job'is
a~ essential principie of reward in Diplora.

Work is under way 1o cevelop Delivering
Value Responisibly as part of the strategy
and we haove s2t some non-financial KPis
and targets (snown on nage 59) but more
trme is needed 1o assure these measures
before we can ~troduce them into variabie
pay. bccord: 'ﬂ:\v cur proposed poticy hos
HAexibiity to int oduce 56 metrics during
thie noicy penad (ot an approprate point},

Within the wider stakeholder context,

we considered now we reward our whole .
workforce, as covered earlier. The senior
management team engages frequently
with empioyees, eitner on a business-wide
basis or in the context of smailer focus
groups, to solicit feedback generally on

a wide range of matters, including
remuneration. Feedback is passed tc the
Committee via the Executive team and i
taken into account by the Comrmittee when
setting Executive Directors’ Remunerotion
Policy. Additionally, we paid attenticn to
how governance is evoiving and have made
a number of ennancernents in our new
oolcy which are set out on page 121
incuding increasing minimum sharehotding
requirements .\MSR, and post cessation
shareholding ~equirerments.

The last stes in the policy revie
review refevant market dota 1o
{but not drive) the Committea’s
considerctions, {dato overview 15 581 oLt on
rpage 120 The Commrittoe is awere o7, and
shares, sharenolder concerns regarding tne
risk of cver redonce on benchrrarking. The
Commrittee s driver for oy increcsed reward
15 greater responsiblity o compiexity in the
relevars role and to recogse greater
capability i the indisdual In o growing,

very successful business such os outs, we
Jre cognsant of retaining oL wey peocle

as they gain incregsing market wort romn
therr proven capaiities anc track recors

in this regard, marxet data does provide

a uwsefui ‘sense-check’.

wE

o

From tre miclugpie steps of the review
the Comrmities concluded there wos
a compeliing cose 1o
compensation potent

Directers. The Committee
incorporating the ncrecie NTT Ire PSP o
incentivise Iong-terr‘" performance o
aiigns performance defvery, stratesic
executio” and snarenoldes walue. 7
vie DIODOSE TO IF 2TRQSS The moy MU
award sotertia for the Po=
300% of base saiar, forthe T2
200% 12 25C% of tose s any
alengside the incr
ond post-cessat
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Shareholder consultation on proposed
changes

Qur 2021 DRR was supported with 3% of
votes in favour During 2022, we consuited
extensively on our policy ond DKI‘( 2027
mplermentation and engaged with 21 of au
wargest shareho.ders, representing arownd
&5% of our register, as well as the key proxy
agencies. The quality of the interactions
was exceflert, and we appreciate the
engogerment ond veluable feedback. There
was a range of views and preferences
exprassed, but we were pleased that 1ke
averail waight of apinion was strongly
SUpROriive.

Remuneration for 2023 - implermentation
Fixed pay:

As disclosed previously, Johnny Thorrson's
cash alowance in lieu of pension
comtribution wili reduce 1o 4% of basic pay
from 1 Janaary 2023 to align with the
majority of the UK workforce,

The Committee considered Jonnny
Thomsen's saiary gs sart of the review. Tre
Comraittes is aware Thot high inflation is
not o solid rationale for increosing executive
pav. The Commrittee considered tre
increased size and comipiexity of the Groun
idoubled 'nsize as shown in the diogram

on page 120}, and Junnny's vaiue as a
high-perferming CED. and conciuded thct
a base pay (ncrease wos required as part

of increasing his tota! carmpensation
opportunity Shareholders asked us 1o
review the increase in the context of
intended wider workforce pay increases, the
macro-economic environment, infiationary
pressures foced by our coleagues and tne
cverail guantem of CEO rewa

Havinig taken these views or ooard we
agreed cn increase ¢ bis pay of &%, whic
reains below the increase awarded to our
wider work force at 7%, We beiieve Th's
provides the right baionce withintme
Compary and witl deliver o comipetitive
CED package.

Annual bonus:

c opzranng profit, 255 o
Targets wil pe oo

ved bodget, Morn

2E% free cash Aowe. Ta
uﬂ‘l"u%“”"”} orpro
bonus ‘o the O

uncnanged at |

PSP:

Anging from tne compeling cose 1o inciease
total compensation for the CEQ, the
Comm:’t‘ree plans to implernent the new
PSP rmaximurm this year for the CEQ, suoject
1o sharancide” approval of the pohcy.
Johrmy Thomson will receive a PSP award
ot 300% of hase salory (PSP 2022). Chris
Davies will receive o PSP aword of 200%

of base sala-y (PSP 2022) (which will be
pro--ated based on him working eleven
months of the year).

A aunoer of sharehoiders have expressed
a preference for EPS over TSR {provided the
ROATCE _nderpin remains), and in our
consuttoton we discussed increasing the
weighting of three-year CAGR adjusted EPS
growth to 75% of the totol award (from
50%), with 25% (praviously 50%) rermaining
on 18R reiat ve 1o the FTSE 250 {exciuding
Anancial services and investment trusts).
Ag tne mapity of sharenolders were
supportive, we Intend 1o progress with this
change for PSP (2022), We will retain the
ROATCE Lndergin, recognising this is
cricaliv irmnportam o sharehoiders.

Druring consultation shareholders asked
that we ensure targets are appropriately
stretcsing given the gregter quantum of
rews I proposed. The Committee
recognises that increased guantum of
reward should be accompaonied by
approctiately high levels of performance
detvery. ir set
that tne focus on organic growth is strong,
the guoity of ocguisitions remains high and
st the mght risk appet'te is mamtaines. in
o feedback. we intend to increose
f ™ payout
5P frorm 1 to 13% for1pe

veard 10 2022, The ronimum threshold wilf
3 “-:_». This prowces the right degree
o Diploma at s timme
vl i g tre Orgomc arowth
cpoottonities, the acguisition pipeline ond
the cregiont market conditions. The Board
W oinia oversight of ROATCE, We wil

oM Ll Lo revien tne level o stretch
oy foreoch PSP grast cycle

o

ting torgets, we seek tC ersure

Non-Executive Directors and Committee
evoluation

John Nicholas retired as Chair of the Board
N Janugry 2022 and was succeeded by
David Lowden. David joired the Soard as
Non-Erecutve Director and Crair designate
on 19 October 2027 Non-Executive Director
fees were reviewed using equivalent inputs
ond increases are shown on page 533,

The Commitee's performance was
assessed as part of the onnual Board
evatugtion. | ami pleased 1o report that
the Committee is regarded os operating
effectively and that the Board taxes
reassuranice from the qualty of the
Committee's work.,

Conclusion

In closing I would once again ke to trark
shareholders for their engsgemnent ove: this
last year We will maintain a close diglogue
as we seek 10 deliver a compettive,
Motivating pay framework that is tight v
oligned to shareholder experience whilst
~Maintaining good governance standards
trust you find s report useful ang 1o«
forward 1 rece ving your sLpport o1 the
AGM on 18 January 2023,

Andy Smith
Chair of the Rermuneration Committee
21 November 2022
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REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE:
DIPLOMA’S APPROACH TO REMUNERATION

Set out below is an illustration of how
remuneration aligns to strategy and how it
cascades in our decentralised business model

Our Purpose: Diploma'’s purpose is to consistently deliver value and reward our stakeholders by
making a positive difference to our colleagues, our customers and suppliers and our communities.

Piploma’s Strategy: build high-quality, scalable businesses for organic growth

Strategic pillar Short term incentive: Long term incentive: Remuneration
Annual Bonus Performance Share Plan Principles

Operating profit: EPS (ROATCE underpin): Eenjunerottio: O"‘gneéj to "
usiness strategy and prometing
1 50% 75% the long-term success of the
GROWTH e . ) Company.
Revenue: Relative TSR: Supporting creation of

O, 0, long-term shareholder value.
25% 25 % Providing an appropricte balance

between remuneration elements

2: Free cash: which are transparent, stretching

SCALING 25%

and rigorously applied.
Providing a balance between
immediate and deferred
remuneration and encouraging
a high performance culture.

3. Non-financial KFls and targets in place, flexibility to
DELIVERING VALUE introduce DVR (ESG) metrics into remuneration included
RESPONSIBLY in the Policy

CASCADE OF REMUNERATION IN OUR DECENTRALISED BUSINESS:

- Remuneration Policy: updated Policy presented to shareholders for voting at AGM in January 2023;
implementation reviewed annually.
EXECUTIVE ~ Emphasis on pay for performance and alignment with shareholders on sustainable long-term
DIRECTORS performance: Group Annual Bonus and PSP measured on ¢ balanced set of defined financial
measures linked to strategy.

- Set locally by referring to Group framework which aligns metrics, targets and quantum for
different types of role. Group governance (including pay equity).
- Reviewed annually,
) - Emphasis on pay for performance. Aligned variable pay, using a blend of Group and local
LEADERSHIP performance targets.
ROLES - Wider participation in Group PSP,

- Set locally, Group/Sector governance.
- Reviewed annually.

- Fair and competitive in local market.
WORKFORCE - Linked to colleague value proposition.




Business Performance 2022 Annual Report of Remuneration

Suategic sxescution

Perfarnare s Reward

Growth

Rovenue diversification: -evenus in tiatives
» Ror structurally

furthar peretrating

A ecorarries and Eﬂ(_‘\“w(‘m'm}

e irneestaEd e >
Ivipariant aog asitions,

Dincipiimed g

o bermtes cna al sn

Grerathing mods

copebility anc Sebore of the Groop for soolo.

DVR

Lerellant progress and aocelerated
rrEarmEnturm as b a0 ermbed DVR N
comrmierciol sirategies and ope=rotiors
Ayacr of rMicre consistent ona rehast

reporting.

Terrggots ot for the st tirnme,

Adjusted operating profit M GXi mum bon us
payabie

+29%

Revenue

% . .
% Maximum vesting

Free cash flow
on PSP
+11%
Adjusted EPS
19%

[Z-venr ZAGR]

ROATCE:
17.3%

Relative TSR:
percentile rank

1%

(3-year performonce)

Engdgement index

(o)
17921@9 DVR metrics
Scope 1& 2 emissions !n remUﬁ.erCIttO.n
10,615 tonnes CO, e included in Policy.

thasel ne vear!

Waste to landfill

O
6 [{e]
{Tiret yvear o meas.rente st

2022 Broader Reward Priorities

Goal

suppor‘t [ p;:id colleagues most
affected by the cost of living crisis

Action

Wage increase for colleagues paid less than £40k of 7.5%,
which is higher than the overall workforce increase.

Retain talent in the competitive
talent market

Wage increase for the workforce of 7% (2.3021: 4%).
Review of variable pay structures and quantum.

Incentivise brilliant leaders on long-term success PSP participation increased to ca. 30 participants (2021: ca. 35

N? Ciplerna PLC Annual Report 2022

participants, 2020: ca. 15 participants),
To keep pace with the growing Group variable pay structures
and quantum reviewed, high pay for high performance.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

2022 Remuneration Policy Review — process

Changes to Remuneration Policy and its implementation
Thie secns At = e Sl

RN

1. Excellent perfdrmcnce and increased scale and cbmpléiity

2. Wider stakeholder context

of the Group: moved from FTSE ca. 185 to FTSE ca. T considered during Policy review:
Adjusted earnings per share ) - Ambitious growth plans.
el s - Attrocting, retaining and incentivising
12 13 14 15 16 7 8 w

management.

- Increased market worth of
maonagement given performance
track record.

- Workforce remuneration experience
and views.

- Focus on supporting wider workforce
during macro environment affecting
workforce-infiation, energy.

- Increasing importance of ESG
performance.

- Broader indicators of culture e.g.
colleague engagement (Engagement
index 79%).

- Market developments in governance
practices, ensuring our governance
aligns with needs of stakeholders.

FY12-18 EPS

i [5a]
: sl
o B
- < o =+ .
= & :

The Group has doubled whilst improving operating margin 3. Market msnght: ,
used to ‘sense check”:

FY19 revenue: FY22 revenue:

£544.7m £1.012.8m a} Information on UK pay levels for

companies of similar size FTSE 150-100
{Diploma: FTSE 1M1, 30 September 2022).
b} There are few direct peers for Diploma.
Hence we use o range of companies
in similar markets or with similar
value-add business models to provide
a comparisen (RS Group plc, Bunzl ple,
Inchcape ple, Spirax-Sarco Engineering
plc, Rentokil Initial plc, Howden Joinery
Group Pic, Spectris plc, Halma plc, DS
Smith ple, Travis Perkins plc, Johnson
Matthey plc). Some within this list
are larger than Diploma but provide
useful insight.
c} Variable pay targets for FTSE 250.

Revenue growth
FY19-22

4% Controls Secis & Life Sciences

FY1e
Adjusted Operating Profit £97.2m
(operating maorgin 17.8%)

4. Shareholder con;ltctionrgrproposed chonges:

- Extensive, direct shareholder consuitation with ca. 65% of the register.
- Consultation with key proxy voting agencies.
- Conversations with shareholders shaped policy proposals including considerations of quantum and stretch in performance targets.
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2022 Remuneration Policy proposals and rationale

MB]AIDA

dtion f2r CEG redoced 10 4% of base pay “rony 107 =y Tror

value already aligred to wider work®srce rate of 4% of oase oy

Ve recogrise the raeeo to retain anc mativate
Cormpary grovwih, The enewed Policy ang its implementation “or 2022 will o

perfarrmance ang irve:

improving the competitiveress of Executive cor 12 over the mext per
Directors perEatizr appartarity,
refectirg grovdr g kasness and criticality

of feadership

o sxpectations, a3 folliwves

[\JO [N kD | [

L0 oL Policy snosimi .

mcrease 15 PSP reaxirmarm dram 250
2007 12 750

Lot ey 10 e st satary lor CEG ard frore

st the TR0

CECHS PSP awaard
e appo rted C

For 2022, 1h«
banc oy, The now

proday 21633015

s areboldie

alary or

gaidefine {MSRY o aligr v
sl 2507 o salary fo

by

30‘”?" [

e alige et

Extersicn of post employment sharebolding requirerment 1o row regaaiv

MSE AT e bald for two years ofter termination date

T I e

Flexibi'ity toindluas ESQ mictrics aurmg nest polioy period,

Proposed implementation of policy in FY23

Fixed
remuneration

Annual
bonus

Long-term
incentives

Shareholding
guideline

Post-cessation
guideline

Johnny Thomson
(CEQ)

Base pay: £754,000
Berchts fund
Persicn: £41,035
feqaivalent to 4%

Moy 125% base zay
arget: ©2.5% buose

Max: 3009 base pay
PSP (2022): 3007
base pay
Performarae periad:
three years

Holding pariod: five
years frorm grart

Halding reguirement:
S00% base pay

Chris Davies'
(CFO)

Base pay: £450,000
Benefits fund
Pensior: £18,000
ferquivolent to 4%
of base pay)

Changéfrom
20

CEQ base pay 6%
inCreass;

CEO pension reduced;
New CFO cppointed

Ma: 125%
Targat: 62
pay

Max: 2007 base pay
PoF (20221 200%
bose pay
Perfarmanace pericd:
three years

Helding period: five
yenrs frorm grant

Holding requirernent:
250% base pay

Folicy rmaximum
increased for CEQ &
CFO

PSP award increased
for CEO

New CFO appointed

Shareholding
guidelire increasac in
line with new PSP
rMaxima

Holding reouirerment:
L0 of MSR for 2
yodrs atter the
termniation gots

Holding reg.irensert:
50%: of the MSR far
7 yeors after the
termination date

Ircreased post
cessutior guideline
from 2 months e
2 years

127 Diplorma PLC &n

OEL Reroane b areounts i the table asiee Sie arnuaised. Wihen irmpiennenrad, alt his e

ruc! Repart 2027

AL DI fy e prates
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Executive Directors

Component Purpose and link to strategy Operation Performance metrics
Base salary iR Tt g g 5 -

Pensions

Benefits




Compenent Maximurn opportunity .
Annual K P .
Performance .
Bonus Plan Sl _twe | ovf
e SR T : AT I
- N Fl o
<
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S
e . ®
: ‘ 3
2
=
=]
Fad
®
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o
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Performance
Share Plan
{PSP)
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Chair and Non-Executive Directors

Component Purpose and link to strategy Qperation Maximum opportunity Performance metrics

T L

g geree 3= T T oo ?

Selection of performance measures and targets for Annual Bon

SR et

ROSNE HESit ar e Tl TITOT N3




Consideration of shareholder views

4

Differences in remuneration policy for other employees

. ] S

4

il

. . S en,

Service contracts

TR = z e Lt T o Z N
R . = 4 5 - - R o - e A
R DT s T DTN o - I e I
- R

o]
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

T EINOr

Sl

SertLrrnior L

e
[URRENS WD
Compensation
pavable upon
Controct Unexpired Netize early
term periad terrmination Malus and clawback
SR 1 C e Mo ce prosions o 1ol N

eng-ten T beortve SN S La

T et e I o s

farm

S

e

Remuneration for new appointments

e SRR Yol e Bl fole T




shareholding requirements

o

MBIALBA

Committee discretion

oo

z
3
Q
-+
®
e,
o
.
)
-
°©
4

- *~ Chair and Non-Executive Directors

o Recruitment and term

22UDUIFA0G) 31pIodiony

n
5
o
3
o,
2
w
+
a
+
3]
3
a
3
+
(]

Policy in respect of externai board appointments for
Executive Directors
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Provision 40 table

Example: +mc <t
Lorpiete L Do

Jo Latate TOY S

Si

g

Example .o ¢

Example: .5

Proportionaiity




ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Executive Directors (audited)
Total remuneration in 2022 and 2021
tonany Thomson Barbarc Gibbes
2022 2301 2022 2021 2022
) 000 5000 £000 £000 £000 1%
e N ) om_ T 365 S 1,076 3
25 vE 19 < 44 n
il - — _ s

7n A 15 R 86
807 ey 399 S 1,206 2z
889 _ 456 S 1,348 its

1,725 ) s 340 2,065 o w

g

262 oom - 372 .§

LT Lt AT e LLTOT ET eI 2,062 4467 2,529 5 a
Total variable 2,951 973 3,874 L »
Single total figure 3,758 PRy 1,322 5,080 -l -g
-+

Departure of Barbera Gibbes and appointment of C o
F e LT N A S S ceyen Rirer e - o
e 1 \ o Ll ST o Q
o : ©
o
Q
~+
o
(n
<]
<
®
=
3
. o
3
- 2]
- I
]
3
a
3
a,
2
k & g SteL oo TLn DD senac e Ltee Dol un T Tam e ZUND Tote - e a4 A
- a
2
Executive Directors’ base salary 3
R R Ltk LET i B - - FRYI ]
“ " . R : T . S R - E1
B R b S e ol +
° in
Salary fram Soane o
1 October P ctobes
2022 252
B £000 L300 srecease s gty
754 o )

B T TS T e 450
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ANNUAL REFPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Pension (oudited}

2022 2021

Contribution Pension Conrribution Pprsinr

rate % of paid as cash rete % of pad ac cosk

base salary £000 base salary 000

e 10 4l . e
g 4 15 2 iz

Annual performance bonus {oudited)
Bonus poy out for year ended 30 September 2

alansisisiseReia 1 ca Ve

022

Overall assessment against targets

Firancial
objectives

125%
LT 125%

Total bonus

' 125%

125%

2022 bonus

£000

889
456

Bonus awards for year ended 30 September 2023




Long-term incentive awards (audited)

RS A z ; T T DT DT o - RIS B R A —‘E '
Performance conditions
E RN A VT T T e ST Lt TF Tt e e * = R ik_ :7,': . - PR

% of cwards

pd
2

c

I

tec EPS growth {over three yearsy

TN e SO

. |
telade s 20 0 ot

verting

2 %e IREEO

% ¢f gwaras
vesting

0]
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Awards ve
Sy

EPS at
30 Sep CaGR Maximum, Maxirmum Vested
Bose EPS 2022 ir- EPS target awald award

It TS N0 re gie1s cmeets toe Broged s erpectotions

Trase

TSR growth against FTSE 250 (excluding financial services and Investment Trusts)
R at

Median Uoper quartile  Moximum award

©
t

WSOTITE T ReRss- NS T E DR A
Share price Share Shore
at date price at Proportion Shares Performontce appreciation
of grant 20 Sep 2022 of award vested element element” Totai
pence pence vesting number £000 1000 £008
3 Trl4 100% 85,481 B
= DElA 100% 19,374
Dividend equivalent payments (audited
- e - . b g onan r e Ty et -
T \ o S - : < -

ls -

Long-term incentive plan - awards granted in the year (audited)
T = . . e

e e s ac fE e e s

Outstanding sha

re-based performance awards {audited)

s eae -




Diploma PLC 2011 and 2020 Performance Share Plan {gudited)

Shares Shares
Sheres over which over which
Face value 21 svel which owards awards
Market  the owarc ot Fnd ot Swarde hee granted Vested Lapsed heid at
price ot oate  date of grant pertormance at 1 5et during during the during the 30 Sep
. ) otaward 2000 __period  Vesting date 201 theyear periﬂ__ o ,PeriOd___i, B 20_2277
Johnny Thoemsoen o
e - 8548 - S :
. - - - 74,804 p
O - 57,007 - - s%007 b4
Barbara Gibbes’
- 19,374 - -
- - {8,601) 17,201
20,485 -~ (13,656) 6,829

yioday oibaiong
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Executive Directors’ interests (audited)
In options over shares

s e recaiges

g rhe 0

Vested Options
Year of Options gs ot Exercised duringtne  unexercised os Exercise Earlrest normal
i 10ct 2021 in year year  at30 Sep 2022 price* exercise dote Expiry acte
12280 : - £1
- - &5, 480 85,481 £1
oy - 19274 19,374 £5
N . . v (RS N =
L I
As at 30 Sep 2022 Ar al 30 Sep 2023 B
Options with Optigns with
Ordinary  Options vested performance Trdinary Options vested performonice
shares  but unexercised measures shores  but unexerciced

102,330 85,481 1381 .

T 5,082 19,374 24,030 Lo

Chair anc_:‘ Non-Executive Directors’ interests in ordinary shares (audited)

s twIneTen e Deattory cretele vonemmine cvTegs T a0 the crot P LT e LR
Imterest =5
T T S 0/ T T Asat30Sep2022 4ot
e - 0 T - 2,5!73077 I
o il 9,045 -
e e 7,545 e
- T, 5,045 -
T 2,045 o
s 640



Remuneration in context
Chief Executive pay ratio (unoudited)

= et

o]

<
1]
=
=,
:
25th percentije Medwan Thtr pereentile
Method poy roto Foy rotic pay fata
e
e
Ratie ot base pay Tota poy

Base salary  to TFO base poy anc benefre

Hoday 216a3pi3g

0
o
=
T
=3
=
o
Pl
(1]
Aligning pay with performance @
Tee e .ol - T s ST e e tn e C<>
: ]
oA et =1
§ 2
: 1o o
* 3
a
- - ®
Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over ten years
o
900 5
a
3
o,
5L Q
2
o
00 3
B
3
®
3
+
450 @
300 9
>
&
=
| -
150 2
o
-
3
G a
G a
30 Ser 2072 30 Sep. 2017 D lep 204 30 %ern 30 Sep 7007 30 Sep 2008 A0 Sep 20719 50 Sep 2020 3G Sep 20621 30 Hep 2177 g
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Chief Executive Officer remuneration compared with annual growth in TSR (unaudited)

Actual share

CEC single Annuai bonus awarg vesting
figu-e of 1oto! agatrst agairst Hanual
remunerctien mMaximurm Maxirnum growth
Norme (£00¢ oppartunity opportunity im TSR

Johnny Thomson ) 3,758 100% 100% CA7%

R I T i USRS U
e = Ty - YT PN - B

2021 Change
£ Een
T e TETY et 177.5 HRE ATt

Tzt A ooder

Percentage change in remuneration of Directors and employees {unoudited)

Base solary fee change (%! Pensior. change "o} Taxabie benefits change et Bonus change (%)
2022 plon 2520 2022 2027 2020 2022 2023 2020 2022 2023 2026

vs 2021 ve 2520 v 2S ve 2021 v 2020 ve 2018 vs 2021 vs 2020 ve 2009 ¥s 2021 ws 2020 ve 2005

_ Nz _ L _ No _
IS MO +3 chonge - -18 - +2 -4 change +3 - “ud
515 No _
+7  crenge Con +7  change cz +2 - - +7 co
- Ne
o Dol TET n/a cranioe -
) e
L N et -69 criange -
_ o Nz
Lommy Do +3 chage cmcnae
Leee Troem +6 - -
He
Ternico Lo +3 change -
s e +185 - -
Employees of the
Parent Company n/a i - n/a Co - n/a - T n/a i T
. ) - . . ) _ No Nz Ne ___ .
Senior management team +7.5 - i +7.5 - -~  change cmemze change +22 - Z:




Executives and s

Pk SIS A [T A

enior

rd {unaudited)

Shares over

Shate which Shares

Face value of over whachk awards over which

tarket price  the award ot Lag ot owerds hels granted Vested Lapser  mwards held

at gore of  pare of geunl perlormance at ridctloher during the during the during the at 30 Sep

award £000 oeriod 2021 year year year 2022

L5 R - 29,546 4,460 -

4 447 - - 9,612 39,860

R sl STl - 102,258 - 8,086 94,172

GOVERNANCE
Rermuneration Committee

e e R
LA

The Remuneration Committee Report

crr o e oo .

Remuneration principles and structure
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Services from external advisers (unaudited)

Other services
pravided 1o the
Advinor Appontec by Services provided tc the Commitiee Compgny Faes (L}

PR I St ALY

=

ral Meeting (unaudited)
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eoycion 37 he

mm e e
o oprove T
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DIRECTORS" REPORT

Sharehoiders
Incorporatlon cr‘:d prlnClpcl octlwty

S

Ly e o e e

:IT:-L

Eercentage of
ordingry shores af oroingry
September share caopita
2022)  'November 2022;

Percentage

Shcre caprtul

= RN R ST R e S LA P
- -, 7 - ] -~ e e
T - - - - PEEE . - . e -
- et

§hu reholders

S i R P

STET Lo

'*-’f(

Ve Coive T DL
Geenar, T T
e TiE D I

Author!‘ty to mcxke market purchcses of own shares
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
CONTINUED

Disciosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4C

4 T 1

Directors’ assessment of going concern

Non-financial information

[ .

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements

Non-financial information statement

FmtEn T o

Financial
Results and dividends
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022
Nate £m
Revenue o - - o o 1,012.8
Ziotctraes {638.3)
Gross profit o T 3745
Tiornomers Losts (25.9)
v S IR £ (204.3)
profit . 144.3
i meg, mat : (14.8})
Profit before tax 129.5
Tr ERDETEE - (34.1) on s
Profit for the year 95.4 ot
Tomvrane 94.7 o £
0.7 L
B ] 954 R
= 76.1p
- 75.9p
ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES'
2022
Mete £m
— _ _ ———— — SV
et dan D 1N e B T RN ot 44.9 P
operating profit ' 7 B I A T2 T T
T ETOTTETEIT TTmo et 1Ty 11.4) 3
Adjusted profit before tax - i - - 1796 i
Adjusted earnings per share - 107.5p i
T - Tlasn s T T Eivatote e LU LG S e



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Profit for the year T T s
ltemns that will not be reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement
: ol LTI I T A 2 10.6 s

: 2T (2.8) L=

- 79.8 R

o 876 -

T 183.0 e

. 182.2 E
_ . _ . os

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Share Share Transictior Hedging Fetamec Shareholders’ Monorty Total
capital premmam reserye reseErve ea nings equity Ierests equity
Note £m £m £m £m £ im £rr £m

At 1October 2020 ol iy 08T R T2 527.0  530.7
T T e e ez n 5 o 60.8 60.5
. . : 1.8 : 1.8

i
1

I
oY

s T " - . ' 1.0 1.0
B . : o (0.5) (0.5}
: ; - : 0.9

e - : : - (0.9) (0.9)
R S S U - - . - - - : 0.7
e 3 i : (52.9) s (53.2)

¢

At 30 September 2021 =7 Theo o T 536.3 T 541.0
Trrn Tielemeno e . RS Woe 182.2 T 183.0
2.8 2.8

i

: - - - . A 0.4 0.4
e : : § R (2.8) (2.8)
) , ) - - (1.3}
. e (1.9) (1.9
- - 1.2 1.2
o - : . - - o (0.3)

SoE U (56.2y .. (56.4)
At 30 September 2022 6.3  188.6 88.8 3.2 3751 662.0 6.2 6682

T LA LI S RO R
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ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

TENMEFT 20

Note £m fer

Non-current ossets
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

R SN L

Cash flow from ope tir{g activities

Net cash from operating octivities

Cash flow from investing activities

z AT Al aL el

Tl eeingl At ot

Conds tTer cas i nopert QT AT Tl DT

(173.0)
(7.1
13.7
(14.3)
(.
9.9

Net cosh used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing octivities

R I AP e I e

Net cash from financing activities

Net increose/idecrecse} in cash and cash'equivaie'nits ) o

PR——

Cash and cash équivcleni’s at end of year

{56.2)

o (0.2)
(0.3}

(2.8)

T 154.8
e (20.0)

Taney e

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES'

2022
Note £m

Free cash flow

o 120.4
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Free cash flow conversion %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
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Z. Business Sector analysis




Life Sciences

780 ol

2022 2021
£m i

188.6  1ii4

vl - 1.8
Revenue )

39.7 “I

1.3

Adjust-ed operating proﬁ{
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41.0 a1l
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

3. Geographic segment analysis by origin

Adjusted operating Trading captoi
_ o . _ ,__R__e"',s"nue o i graﬁ*t___. 7 Nor-current OE’,"E‘VE\" . ewlﬂ:lg-d o 7777‘50:1\(03 sxiper\rd;lure
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o £m . g tm = i &M i 7 &m0 Bm
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e 293 I~ 1691 ToE 179.8 ! 7 o
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" alty B -4 T i 57.1_ 7‘_"4"? 62._37_7 ER R - B
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4. Group employee costs
Average number of employees
R e 22 e

RSP 423 45
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981
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— T T T e
Number of employees — year end 2,909

Group employee costs, including key management
2022 2021
£m irr
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13.3 L
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5. Financial expense, net

interest (expense)/income and similar charges - a -
Toaretnno e d (1.0) o
0.1
- (7.9 e
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Net interest expense and similar ch;rges

2
=
6. Tax expense =
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Current tax o
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Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

2022 2021 2022 2021
pence pershare  pence pe- share £m _im

15.0 B 187
RIS 7;7:”..:'\ - i ;0.1
451
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8. Earnings per share
Basi¢ and diiuted earnings per share

cmmre e T

Adjusted earnings per share
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2022 2020 2022 200
. pence per share  cence persmare ) £m i
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10. Acquisition and other intangible assets
acquis.'i-:::\l Other
Customer Supbler intangible intangikle
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

S Il A T
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11. Property, plant and equipment
Freehowd Leosehotg Plant ana Herprtg Geld
properties properties equiprient eguipment Tetal
£ £ £ £rr £m
Cost
LN B S 25 g iz 2 63.3

R PR e L.k - e T 12.3
At30September2022 . 36 12 ez - w7 917

Depreciation

'
V
I
.

)
¥
[= 3]

Trlt oy erLTT = o e [ T 7.4
At30 September2022 W 82 37 %1 484
Net book value
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12. Leases - right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Right-of-use assets

Lana® Piant & Meotor TR othoe
buiidirge machinery verucles egJipient Total
£ £ £n im £m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

13. Deferred tax

L T SO B P S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

17. Cash and cash equivalents

2022

uss s Euro Other Total UK, [
£fm £m £m £m 7 £m im ir
7.1 2.3 7.8 6.4 38.8 -z o

01 18 - 10 29 -z
72 41 78 74 M7 s: <l B

18. Financial instruments

r Soetd TMLTage T

a) Credit risk

L

Jarying amourt

2022

o £m
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Impairment of financial assets




b) Ligquidity risk

SRR S B e PR o A T S Ko bt 0

Tl LT et talT o st D e o
2022 2071
m )

]
[=]
&
~

=]
ERS

4
,
0
&
»
I~

N s 25.8
- .. 35.0

' ' B B B 5278

c) Currency

= Tueo Lt e T e
- T - L - -
! H R - Loz
TR =20 v St

R - N

- . .

O

MBIAIDA

yioday 216930138

I2UDUIBACD) a)birodio)

iy
3
=]
3
8.
o
[Ta)
+
a3
+
3
m
=
+
wn

UOHDWIOU| J8Y3Q




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SLPTEMBER 2022

Trade and other receivables/payables

= . P e e e -

Borrowings
Other liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

20. Minority interests

Lz
P
Sz
1
6.2
orer SR TLoTmere e W N - T e
e v e - - - .
e o ST T e <

21. Acquisitions and disposals of businesses
Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group Limited

L

+ - s
Acquisition of Accuscience
B B I A St L I = . = _e ez Lo o e
P
Other acquisitions
- o Do T . L _
P :



5 ] R 2. ! -. P el B .t - T N 10T o
REG Accuscience Dthers Tetal
Buok value Farr vaiue Book volue Fair value Book vaue Far vaiue Book value Fair value
o L Em fm £m B T L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

22. Reconciliation of operating profit to cash How from operating activities

2022 2022 2028 2023
£m £m . Lre f.m .
Operating profit T T T T T T s Th
Ao re SYET O CThe s D oes toTe 46.9 LA
Adjusted operating profit I T s
ke B ML S TR S te vl SRR 1o e oot a7 eness -
' 23.9 o
Cane 2.8 z
[ A L e TRt e et {0.6) s
{1.4) I
SmnEs T (6.5) A
e o7 —cask o yerT en B 041 L0
Non-cash ttemns and other - S \_ 72_.1
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital 209.3
InTraos SR (35.6) crE
Rolaloi (10.8} “
eI T T ds 2ol ather T3 17.5 L
Increase in working copital (28.7) i
Cash flow from operating activities 180.6 LD
23. (Net debt)/cash funds
- ST e ’ T - e . o ' . Exchﬂﬂg& Other non-cowh
10c1 2021 Cast fiow rovements HOVErents 30 Sep 2022
£ £ e £m
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24, Retirement benefit asset and obligat
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SERTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

a} Pension surpius / (deficit) included in the Consolidated Staterment of Financial Position

£m
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3.9 5T

73 oE
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Pension scherne net asset / (déﬁcit)i 4.4

Corrmn s e .
Trc Byt ahoy e 1o ; e N )
CGII 0TS the Buy T LS T TRE LT T SR ETE TIT annet e p3et A5 S ninton gnnat o poo raloted 29nat om oot bacs, omtng
2022 20
£m fre
(0.8) £
0.8 Dk

Lo ez 11 finania e

Amoufﬂ?sichcrged to the Consolidctedﬁlgc;rﬁﬁtiém?\; - T ) T ) -

c) Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income

Trpetsr o asaTTe s L GinoirE o Tt B e _(07)_ o
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e} Analysis of movermnents in the present value of the Schemne liabilities
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) Analysis of movernents in the present value of the Scheme assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

Effect of the Scheme on the Group's future cash fiows

e D gty e i oLt
=z N R

The Kubo Pension Scheme {the Kubo Sche

- e B -

B T T T B I T P Ll L e

b} Amounts charged to the Consalidated Income Statement o
@

S o B X

Amount charged to operat ement ' - -

(0.5)

2022 20
£m 7 £

2.2 t
0.5 o5
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At 30 September - .

d) Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive incom
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Effect of the Kubo Scheme on the Group’s future cash flows

£m

[T BT IR Ty S oL :‘,_:
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25, Auditors’ remuneration

Tt e R i STl LD I Teoe L TE D D Tir e Tt ot
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26. Exchaonge rates
B Ee e L L e e T TR i R e e mm T s
Average Clesing
R e 2022 - 20m B 2022
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27.1 Adjusted operuting profit and adjusted operating margin
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

1.1 Basis of
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

f) Borrowings
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1.21.2 Goodwill impairment (estimate)
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

a) Accounting policies
a.1} Basis of accounting
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

d) Investments
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Our audit approach
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED




Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibiiities of the directors for the financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Controts

1T T R DT re
. e e

w
par e T Co e
— s o S

- ET e e

gisterec cMice addre

Life Sciences

Rezisterac ofazc cade




Overview Strategic Report Corporate Governance | Financial Statements Qther Information

£ 10 J S S S T R N S T S SRR Y | I -1 -
B V X ’
R - .
a, ; ’
a’ . - \
3 R . .
L R
13 : B
M FR , _ o ,
i 1 " . ‘
5 . o 3
| . B f
i Py B
| w1 L "~
Lo i
"B |
o} .
s ;
E :
: ,_
2] 1
£ f,
M n .
Q Iy . :
i 5 .
[ b
Tm LR
T.m : i H 5 .
@ Toon - !
E Lol
Tm gk
€ -l -1 3 T T | P O A i




FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Announcements (provisional dates) Shareholders’ enquiries
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ADVISORS

Corporate Stockbrokers
Numis Securities
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DIPLOMA PLC

10 - 11 Charterhouse Square
London ECIM 6EE

T +44 (0)20 7549 5700

www.diplomaplc.com




